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Peak Performance in Accounting

Parmelee Poirier & Associates, LLP Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Town Council

Town of West Warwick

West Warwick, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of West
Warwick, Rhode Island (Town) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the
Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Town’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in “Government Auditing
Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, business type activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable thereof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February 26,
2013 on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results
of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 12 and 56
through 63 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an

469 Centerville Road, Suite 203 | Warwick, RI 02886 | Phone: 401-738-0010 | Fax: 401-738-1105
WWW, parmeleepoirier.com

1



appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and
individual non-major fund financial statements and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also
not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

/&WLA/QLQ%@WV & / e CLT

Parmelee, Poirier & Associates, LLP
February 26, 2013
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Un-audited)

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of West Warwick, Rhode Island’s financial performance
provides an overview of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Please
read it in conjunction with the letter of transmittal and the Town’s financial statements that follow this
section.

Financial Highlights

o

% The Town’s primary government’s net assets decreased $10,297,957 as a result of this year’s
current operations. Most of this decrease was due to increases in the town liabilities such as the
net pension obligation of $8,006,319 and the net OPEB obligation of $2,664,064. On a
government-wide basis the assets of the Town of West Warwick exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the most recent fiscal year by $35,040,546. Net assets of business activities increased by
$548,266 or 0.9%, while net assets of Governmental Activities decreased by $10.846,223 or
53.7%.

% The Town’s Government-wide (governmental and business activities) operating expenses were
$106,417,377 a 0.9% decrease from the prior year, while revenues collected were $96,119,420 a
.03% decrease.

s As of the close of the fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $6,938,725. Over 54.4% of this amount, $3,777,700 is unreserved and available for
use within the Town’s designation and fiscal policies.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the general fund unassigned fund balance was $5,741,416 or
7.5% of the total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. The current fiscal year’s revenues
and transfers exceeded expenditures and transfers by $1,088,164. On a budgetary basis revenues
and transfers exceeded expenditures and transfers by the same amount.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements consist of three components:

e Government — wide financial statements
¢ Fund financial statements
e Notes to financial statements

In addition to the basic financial statements, this report also contains required supplementary information
and supplementary information.

The Town’s basic financial statements and supplementary financial information provide information
about all of the Town’s activities. They provide both a short-term and a long-term view of the Town’s
financial health as well as information about activities for which the Town acts solely as a trustee for the
benefit of those outside of the Town’s government.



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Un-audited)

Government-wide financial statements - are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Town’s finances in a manner, which is similar to a private-sector business. They are presented on the
accrual basis of accounting where revenues and expenditures are recognized on the date they occurred
rather than on the date they were collected or paid.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information which shows how the Town’s net assets changed during
the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods. Examples are
uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town, which are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type

activities). The Town’s governmental activities include general government and administration, public
~ safety, development services, cultural and recreational services. The Town’s business activities include
the West Warwick Sewer Commission and the Municipal Court.

The government wide financial statements are reported on pages 13 through 14.

Fund financial statements — A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into two categories-governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources
and uses of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental fund statements of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to-facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Un-audited)

The Town maintains governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances for the General Fund and School Special Revenue Unrestricted Fund, which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary Funds - The Town’s proprietary funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town has two enterprise funds.
The West Warwick Sewer Commission, which accounts for the Town’s sewer system and Municipal
Court which collects and levies fines and fees. :

The Town’s internal service funds represent an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the Town’s various functions. The Town is self-insured in its health coverage, and the
Internal Service Fund reports the actual claims as well as the Town’s contribution to the fund and
employee deductions for the benefit program. The Internal Service Fund in combined with the
Governmental Activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the West
Warwick Sewer Commission since it is considered to be a major fund of the Town. The Internal Service
Fund is presented as a Major Fund at the Towns’ request. The Municipal Court fund, which are not major
fund, is presented in the proprietary fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 18 through 20.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because
resources of those funds are nor available to support the Town’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 and 22.

Notes to Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements are presented on pages 23 through 56.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain supplementary information pertinent to the Town’s operations. Required Supplementary
information is presented on pages 57 through 65.

The combining statements and supplementary information referred to earlier in connection with non-
major governmental funds, and proprietary funds are presented on pages 66 through 99.
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(Un-audited)

Government-wide Financial Analysis
Analysis of the Town of West Warwick’s Net Assets

As noted earlier, over time net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position
and an important determinant of its ability to finance services in the future. The Town of West Warwick,
governmental activities liabilities exceeded its assets by $35,040,546 as of June 30, 2012. This reflects a
decrease of $10,297,957 from this current year activity. The Business Type Activities had an increase of
$548,266. See page 3 financial highlights for a further explanation.

Listed below is a comparison of the current and prior fiscal years.

Town of West Warwick

Net Assets
June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012
Govern- Business Govern- Business
mental Type mental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Current and Other Assets ~ $§ 16,074,422  $ 16,357,992  § 32432414 § 18441765 § 15589811 § 34,031,576

Capital assets 50,143,059 79,684,515 129,827,574 48,023,458 76,271,463 124,294,921
Total Assets 66,217,481 96,042,507 162,259,988 66,465,223 91,861,274 158,326,497

Other Liabilities 7,638,899 11,374,841 19,013,740 9,607,513 8,350,342 17,957,855

Long-Term Liabilities 78,884,486 24,533,000 103,417,486 82,500,096 22,828,000 105,328,096
Total Liabilities 86,523,385 35,907,841 122,431,226 92,107,609 31,178,342 123,285,951
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital

Net of Related Debt 24,720,059 55,151,515 79,871,574 24,205,458 53,443,463 77,648,921
Restricted 2,106 - 2,106 2,110 - 2,110
Unrestricted (45,028,069) 4,983,151 (40,044,918) (49,849,954) 7,239,469 (42,610,485)

Total Net Assets $ (20,305,904) § 60,134,666 § 39,828,762 § (25,642,386) § 60,682,932 § 35,040,546

The largest portion of the Town’s net assets $77,648,921 consists of its investments in capital assets such
as land, buildings and improvements, motor vehicles, furniture and equipment and infrastructure, less any
debt used to acquire these assets, which is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide
services to its citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves are
unlikely to be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30,2012
(Un-audited)

An additional portion of the Town’s net assets, $2,110, represents resources that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

Analysis of the Town of West Warwick’s Operations

The following analysis provides a summary of the Town’s operations for the year ended June 30, 2012.
The Town first implemented GASB Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments for the fiscal year June 30, 2004. Therefore,
comparative data is now available and is presented in the following schedules. Governmental activities
decreased the Town’s net assets by $10,846,223 for the current period, which is a decrease of 53.7% in
the Town’s governmental net assets, while business-type activities increased the Town’s net assets by
$548.,266 accounting for 0.9% decrease in business-type net assets. Overall, the Town’s net assets
decreased by $10,297,957, which is a 26.1% decrease over the prior year’s net assets.

The net change in fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was an increase of $267,622 for
the Towns governmental fund types. In the statement of activities, expenses for capital items are not
recorded as expenses but shown on the balance sheet, which resulted in an decrease of $(2,119,601) net of
depreciation to our net assets; also increase revenues from the decrease in deferred revenues are recorded
as revenues in the statement of activities but in the fund financial statements this resulted in a decrease of
$18,678. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets, which increased net assets by $1,659,535.
Reductions in net assets included an increase in the Town’s net pension obligation of $8,006,319 and the
Town was required to record their liability for “Other Post Employment Benefits” per GASB 45, this
liability resulted in reduction of net assets of $2,664,064. See page 17 of the basic financial statements
for a more detailed explanation of changes in net assets.

The following page presents the Changes in Net Assets for the current year’s activity.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Un-audited)

Revenues

Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

General Revenues
Property taxes
Investment earnings
State general revenue sharing
State motor vehicle phase-out
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenses
Legislative/judicial/admin
Financial Administrative
Public Safety
Public Works
Public Health and Welfare
Parks and Recreation
Library
Education
Capital
Interest
Sewer Fund Expenses
Non-major business types

Total expenses

Excess/(deficiency) before transfers
Transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Prior period adjustments
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

Town of West Warwick
Changes in Net Assets
June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012
Govern- Business Govern- Business
mental Type mental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
$ 3,669,109 $ 7387839 § 11,056,948 § 4003360 $ 8517428 § 12,520,788
27,647477 - 27,647477 27,949,848 - 27,949,848
518,993 - 518,993 738,061 - 738,061
51,619,198 51,619,198 52,332,518 - 52,332,518
159,892 - 159,892 15,275 12,604 27,879
2,040,631 - 2,040,631 2,212,255 - 2,212,255
2,917,180 - 2,917,180 213,719 - 213,719
129,519 - 129,519 124,352 - 124,352
88,701,999 7,387,839 96,089,838 87,589,388 8,530,032 96,119,420
20,459,836 20,459,836 22,233,412 - 22,233,412
687,191 687,191 741,020 - 741,020
13,932,866 - 13,932,866 11,688,239 11,688,239
4,347,074 - 4,347,074 4,064,851 - 4,064,851
1,126,096 1,126,096 964,913 - 964,913
810,123 - 810,123 * 646,393 646,393
755,054 755,054 654,294 - 654,294
54,393,470 54,393,470 56,371,076 - 56,371,076
- - - 79,072 - 79,072
1,068,814 - 1,068,814 1,002,341 - 1,002,341
- 9,533,562 9,533,562 - 7,738,891 7,738,891
- . 218,337 218,337 - 232,875 232,875
97,580,524 9,751,899 107,332,423 98,445,611 7,971,766 106,417,377
(8,878,325) (2,364,060) (11,242,585) (10,856,223) 558,266 (10,297,957)
- - 10,000 (10,000) -
(8,878,525) (2,364,060) (11,242,585) (10,846,223) 548,266 (10,297,957
(11,427,379) 62,498,726 51,071,347 (20,305,904) 60,134,666 39,828,762
- - - 5,509,741 - 5,509,741
(11,427,379) 62,498,726 51,071,347 (14,796,163) 60,134,666 45,338,503

$ (20,305,904)

$ 60,134,666

$ 39,828,762

§ (25,642,386)

3 s

§ 35,040,546




TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Un-audited)

Financial Analysis of the Town of West Warwick’s Funds

Governmental Funds - The focus of the Town of West Warwick’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In particular, the unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of the Town’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $6,938,725. Approximately 54.4% of the total amount, or $3,777,700 constituted unassigned
fund balances. The remainder of the fund balance is considered non-spendable, restricted or assigned due
to future commitments.

Town of West Warwick
Fund Balances
School
Special Other
Revenue Non-Major Total
General Unrestricted Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

Fund balances:
Nonspendable fund balances:

Inventory ‘ $ 60,929 §$ - $ - $ 60,929

Deferred charges 6,097 66,383 - 72,480
Restricted fund balances:

Capital projects fund - - 139,169 139,169

Special revenue funds - - 1,742,871 1,742,871

QZAB bond sinking fund 1,128,971 - - 1,128,971
Assigned fund balances:

Capital improvements 16,605 - - 16,605
Unassigned, reported in non-major:

General fund 5,741,416 - - 5,741,416

Special revenue funds - (1,734,569) (229,147) (1,963,716)
Total fund balances $ 6,954,018 $ (1,668,186) $ 1,652,893 $ 6,938,725

Proprietary Funds - The Town of West Warwick’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information as presented in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the respective proprietary funds are $7,239,469.



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30,2012
(Un-audited)
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Revenues:

General Property Taxes — were over budget by $529,095 due to increased collections of tax revenues.

Departmental revenues — were under budget by $318,333 due to decreased collections of permit and clerk
revenues.

Transfer from other funds — were over budget by $184,615 special revenue sources funding general fund
prior year expenditures.

Expenditures:

Legislative, judicial and General Administrative — was over budget by $177,945 due to unfavorable legal
outcomes and increased employee health insurance premiums in the current year.

Public Works — were under budget by $577,830 due to various favorable line items including staffing,
fleet maintenance, and favorable winter conditions for 2011/2012.

Capital — was under budget by $102,063 due to funding sources of major capital improvements to the Ice
Rink.

Other financing sources

Operating transfers to other funds — were over budget by $105,930 due to the Town’s funding of special
revenue fund accumulated deficits in the current year.

The Town of West Warwick’s Capital Assets

The Town of West Warwick’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities amounts to $124,294,921 net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2012. Included are land,
building and improvements, construction in progress, motor vehicles, furniture and equipment and

infrastructure.

Additional information on the Town of West Warwick’s capital assets is located in Note 7 of the notes to
the financial statements.

The Town of West Warwick has no capital asset replacement plan in place as of June 30, 2012.
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Town of West Warwick
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012
Govern- Business Govern- Business
mental Type mental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Land $ 6,100,113 $ 52,900 $ 6,153,013 $ 6,100,113 $ 52,900 $ 6,153,013
Construction in Progress 207,752 7,525,789 7,733,541 207,752 7,768,535 7,976,287
Land improvements 30,779 - 30,779 - - -
Infrastructure 19,685,329 - 19,685,329 18,566,707 ] - 18,566,707
Buildings and improvements 21,891,543 46,103,055 67,994,598 20,784,738 43,033,116 63,817,854
Motor vehicles 895,101 - 895,101 1,261,086 - 1,261,086
Office furniture and equipment 805,711 - 805,711 688,740 - 688,740
Extensions and Mains - 26,002,771 26,002,771 - 25,416,912 25416912
Machinery and equipment 526,731 - 526,731 414,322 - 414,322
Total $ 50,143,059  § 79,684,515 $ 129,827,574 $ 48,023,458 $ 76,271,463 $ 124,294921

The Town of West Warwick’s Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of West Warwick’s Governmental Activities had a total
bonded debt of $23,818,000 and capital leases payable of $237,671. Of this amount, 100% comprises
bonded debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government. The following is a summary of the

Town’s long-term debt.

Town of West Warwick
Outstanding Debt

General Obligation Bonds and Notes Payable

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012
Govern- Business Govern- Business
mental Type , mental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
General Obligation Bonds ~ $ 25,423,000 $ - $ 25,423,000 $ 23,818,000 $ - $ 23,818,000
Capital Leases Payable - - - 237,671 - 237,671
Notes Payable - 24,533,000 24,533,000 - 22,828,000 22,828,000
Totals § 25,423,000 $ 24,533,000 § 24,055,671 $ 22,828,000 $ 46,883,671

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in note

Financial Statements and on page 99.

$ 49,956,000

11

10 of the Notes to the



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Un-audited)

The Town’s general obligation bond rating as assigned by Moody’s Investors Service in 2012 is Baa+ and
B- by Fitch Rating Service. The State of Rhode Island imposes a limit of 3 percent of the fair value of all
taxable Town property on the general obligation debt that a municipality can issue. The Town of West
Warwick’s limit is $65,947,224 at year-end. The Town’s outstanding general obligation debt is
~ $23,818?OOO at year-end, which is $42,129,224 under the State imposed limitation.

Several of the Town’s bonds are insured and thus hold a Triple A credit rating from both Moody’s and
Fitch Rating Service.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates e

The Town of West Warwick’s total general fund budget for fiscal year 2013 amounts to $79,639,387
which reflects an increase of $559,160 over the fiscal 2012 budget of $79,080,227. Of the Town’s 2013
budget of $79,639,387, 61% is budgeted for educational purposes and 39% is budgeted for general
government.

The State of Rhode Island is budgeted to contribute $18,295,084 to the Town’s education department
based on State Aide for a Town considered depressed due to population of the School District and the
average level of wages earned by its citizens.

The Town’s tax rate for fiscal 2012 is $21.403, with 41% allocated for general government and 59%
allocated for education. For fiscal 2012, the Town’s tax rate was $21.403, with 39% allocated for general
government and 61% allocated for education.

Request for Information
The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers and creditors with a general overview
of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the tax dollars received. If you have

questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Director’s Office,
Town of West Warwick, 1170 Main Street, West Warwick, RI 02893,

Donald Gray
Interim Finance Director

12
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,284210 3,102,592 15,386,802
Accounts receivable:
Accounts receivable net 2,367,808 6,091,392 8,459,200
Due from other governments 1,104,814 - 1,104,814
Other receivables 785,618 - 785,618
Inventory at cost 60,929 - 60,929
Deferred charges 1,838,386 - 1,838,386
Other assets
Other assets - net - 2,716,044 2,716,044
Long-term sewer assessment receivable - 3,679,783 3,679,783
Capital assets:
Property, plant and equipment 41,715,593 68,450,027 110,165,620
Construction in progress 207,752 7,768,536 7,976,288
Assets not being depreciated-Land 6,100,113 52,900 6,153,013
Total capital assets 48,023,458 76,271,463 124,294,921
TOTAL ASSETS 66,465,223 91,861,274 158,326,497
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 6,277,548 132,145 6,409,693
Accrued expenses 1,495,141 303,963 1,799,104
Unearned revenue 249,452 9,499,606 9,749,058
Internal balances 1,585,372 (1,585,372) -
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 1,764,673 1,716,000 3,480,673
Due in more than one year 80,735,423 21,112,000 101,847,423
Total liabilities 92,107,609 31,178,342 123,285,951
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 24,205,458 53,443,463 77,648,921
Restricted for:
Trust agreements 2,110 - 2,110
Unrestricted (deficit) (49,849 954) 7,239,469 (42,610,485)
Total net assets $  (25,642,386) 60,682,932 $ 35,040,546

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to these financial statements
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Fund Financial Statements



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Balance Sheet

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable:
Real estate and personal property taxes (net)
Due from other governments
Other receivables

Internal balances

Inventory

Deferred charges

Other Assets - net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Internal balances
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable fund balances
Restricted fund balances, reported in:
Capital projects funds
Special revenue funds
General fund
Assigned fund balances
Unassigned, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Governmental Funds

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the

June 30, 2012
School
Special Other
Revenue Non-Major Total
General Unrestricted Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 11,303,881 $ 28,080 § 952,249 $ 12,284,210
2,367,808 - - 2,367,808
- 410,579 694,235 1,104,814
129,841 49,334 - 179,175
382,312 3,203,402 1,128,158 4,713,872
60,929 - - 60,929
6,097 66,383 - 72,480
1,370,571 - - 1,370,571
$ 15,621,439 $ 3,757,778 $ 2,774,642 $ 22,153,859
$ 371,468 $ 4,583,269 $ 693,282 $ 5,648,019
1,121,865 99,885 - 1,221,750
5,151,053 742,810 428,467 6,322,330
2,023,035 - - 2,023,035
8,667,421 5,425,964 1,121,749 15,215,134
67,026 66,383 - 133,409
- - 139,169 139,169
- - 1,742,871 1,742,871
1,128,971 - - 1,128,971
16,605 - - 16,605
5,741,416 » - - 5,741,416
- (1,734,569) (229,147) (1,963,716)
6,954,018 (1.668,186) 1,652,893 6,938,725
$ 15,621,439 $ 3,757,778 $ 2,774,642
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. (see note 8) 48,023,458
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. (see note 8) 1,895,527

current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (see note 8) (82,500,096)
Net assets of governmental activities

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to these financial statements
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND

Revenues
General property tax
Intergovernmental and departmental revenues
License and permits
Fines and interest on late payments
Interest on investments
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Legislative, judicial and general administrative
Financial administration
Public safety
Public works
Public Health and Welfare
Parks and recreation
Library
Education
Capital
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Other expenditures
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
before other financing sources (uses)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Prior period adjustments (Note 14)
Fund balances - beginning (Restated)

Fund balances - ending

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

School
Special Other
Revenue Non-Major Total
General Unrestricted Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
$ 52,351,196 $ - $ - $ 52,351,196
3,767,025 21,279,147 6,411,586 31,457,758
1,755,094 - - 1,755,094
497,815 - - 497,815
12,714 2,557 4 15,275
162,245 163,457 1,188,785 1,514,487
58,546,089 21,445,161 7,600,375 87.591,625
9,412,261 - - 9,412,261
703,167 - - 703,167
11,318,946 - 818,129 12,137,075
3,669,668 - 292,712 3,962,380
141,840 - 823,073 964,913
256,671 - - 256,671
632,000 - - 632,000
- 50,394,415 6,012,445 56,406,860
140,863 - 71,266 212,129
1,605,000 - - 1,605,000
1,022,888 - - 1,022,888
18,659 - - 18,659
28,921,963 50,394,415 8,017,625 87,334,003
29,624,126 (28,949,254) (417,250) 257,622
194,615 28,491,907 222,093 28,908,615
(28,730,577) - (168,038) (28,898,615)
(28,535,962) 28,491,907 54,055 10,000
1,088,164 (457,347) (363,195) 267,622
7,644,542 (3,140,177) 2,016,088 6,520,453
(1,778,688) 1,929,338 - 150,650
5,865,854 (1,210,839) 2,016,088 6,671,103
$ 6,954,018 $ (1,668,186) $ 1,652,893 $ 6,938,725

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to these financial statements
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds $ 267,622

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different from the amounts reported as fund expenditures because:

Governmental funds reported capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which depreciation expense ($3,556,073) exceed capital outlays of
($1,436,472) in the current period. (2,119,601)

Increases in deferred revenues provide current financial resources in the
statement of activities, but are reported as decreases in revenues in the governmental
funds. (18,678)

Some expenditures reported in the governmental funds that require the use
of current financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the
statement of activities. (865)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
This is the amount by which long-term borrowings were reduced. 1,659,535

Other certain accrued expenditures that do not use current financial resources are
not reported in the fund financial statements. However, in the statement of
activities these accrued expenses are recognized and charged to current activities. (10,634,236)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (10,846,223)

Please see Notes 8 and 9 in the Notes to Financial Statements for a more detailed explanation of the differences between
the Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to these financial statements
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30,2012

Enterprise Funds

Internal
Sewer Non-Major Service
, Fund Funds Total Fund
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,102,592 $ - $ 3,102,592 -
Accounts receivable
User fees (Net) 6,091,392 - 6,091,392 600,000
Internal balances 1,504,532 80,840 1,585,372 338,351
Total current assets 10,698,516 80,840 10,779,356 938,351
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land 52,900 - 52,900 -
Plant facilities and equipment in service 69,081,232 - 69,081,232 -
Extensions and main 26,493,069 - 26,493,069 -
Construction in progress 7,768,536 - 7,768,536 -
Total property, plant and equipment 103,395,737 - 103,395,737 -
Less accumulated depreciation 27,124.274 - 27,124 274 -
Net property, plant and equipment 76,271,463 - 76,271,463 -
Other Assets
Other assets - net 2,716,044 - 2,716,044 -
Long-tern sewer assessment receivable 3,679,783 - 3,679,783 -
Total non-current assets 82,667,290 - 82,667,290 -
TOTAL ASSETS 93,365,806 80,840 93,446,646 938,351
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 125,014 7,131 132,145 629,529
Accrued expenses 301,903 2,060 303,963 -
Deferred revenues 5,819,823 - 5,819,823 -
Internal balances - - - 308,822
Current portion of long-term debt 1,716,000 - 1,716,000 -
Total current liabilities 7,962,740 9,191 7,971,931 938,351
Non-current liabilities
Notes and bonds payable 21,112,000 - 21,112,000 -
Deferred revenue 3,679,783 - 3,679,783 -
Total non-current liabilities 24,791,783 - 24,791,783 -
Total liabilities 32,754,523 9,191 32,763,714 938,351
Net Assets
Invested-in Capital assets, net of related debt 53,443,463 - 53,443,463 -
Unrestricted 7,167,820 71,649 7,239,469 -
Total Net Assets $ 60,611,283 $ 71,649 $ 60,682,932 -

See auditor’s report and accompanying notes to these financial statements
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30,2012

Employee
Retirement Plan  Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ - $ 207,291
Receivables:
Accrued school contribution receivable 1,707,174 207,291
Accrued town contribution receivable 424,183
Interest receivable 61,794
Total receivables 2,193,151 -
Investments, at fair value:
Cash management investment funds 2,332,930 -
Government securities 3,168,032 -
Fixed income 2,039,562 -
Equities 18,925,273 -
Total investments 26,465,797 -
TOTAL ASSETS 28,658,948 207,291
LIABILITIES
Deposits payable to others - 207,291
Internal balances 6,443 -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 258 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,701 $ 207,291
NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes $ 28,652,247

See auditor’s report and accompanying notes to these financial statements
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Additions
Contributions
Employer contributions
Plan members contributions
Accrued contributions - Town
Total contributions

Investment earnings
Net (decrease) in fair value of investments
Interest and dividends
Total investment earnings
Total additions
Deductions
Benefits paid _
Operating expenses
Total deductions
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Prior period adjustments (Note 14)
Fund balances - beginning (Restated)

Net assets - ending

Employee
Retirement Plan

$ 1,100,592
1,359,380
424,183

2,884,155

(1,236,754)
806,752

(430,002)

2,454,153

8,177,392
302,952

8,480,344

(6,026,191)

32,971,264
1,707,174

34,678,438

$ 28,652,247

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to these financial statements
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of West Warwick, Rhode Island, have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The government’s significant accounting policies are described
below.

Reporting Entity

The Town of West Warwick was founded in 1913. The Town is governed largely under the Home Rule Charter
approved by the electorate on November 4, 1986 and effective December 5, 1988. In some matters, including
the issuance of short and long-term debt, the general laws of the State of Rhode Island govern the Town. On
February 8, 1994 a special election was held and the Towns’ people voted to change the form of Town
government from a Mayor to a Town Council/Manager form of government. The Town provides the following
services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety (police, fire, traffic safety, inspections, zoning and building),
Public Works (sanitation, highways and streets, engineering and building maintenance), Parks and Recreation,
Education, Social Services, and General Administrative Services.

This report includes all of the funds of the Town of West Warwick. The reporting entity for the town consists of
(a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, (c)
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are
such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are
financially accountable.

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made
by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14. Under GASB Statement No. 14, the financial
reporting entity includes both the primary government, which is the Town-of West Warwick, and all of its
component units. Component units are legally separate entities that meet any one of the following three tests:

Test 1 - the primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the potential
component unit and

* is able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or
* is in a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential component unit;

Test 2 - the potential component unit is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; or

Test 3 - the financial statements would be misleading if data from the potential component
unit was not included.
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The following entities were considered for classification as component units for fiscal year 2012:

* West Warwick School System

* West Warwick Library

* West Warwick Housing Authority

* West Warwick Senior Center

Although the West Warwick School System and the West Warwick Library meet certain criteria of the tests
listed above, these entities are not deemed to have separate legal status apart from the Town. As a result, the
financial data of these entities have been included as Special Revenue Funds within the Town's financial
statements. The Housing Authority and Senior Center met none of the tests as described above and therefore, are
not considered a component unit of the Town.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the reporting government as
a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds (the activity of these funds are
reported in the statements of fiduciary net assets and changes in fiduciary net assets). The government-wide
financial statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which, is considered to be
separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts,
which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into
three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within
the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of
the Town or meets the following criteria:

(a) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding
total (assets, liabilities, and so forth) for all funds of that category or type
(that is, total governmental or total enterprise funds), and

(b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding
total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

In addition to.funds that meet the major fund criteria, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the

government’s officials believe is particularly important to financial statement users (for example, because of
public interest or consistency) may be reported as a major fund.
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Majof Governmental Funds

General Fund - is used to account for resources devoted to financing the general services that the Town
performs for its citizens. General tax revenues and other sources of revenues used to finance the
fundamental operations of the Town are included in this fund. The fund is charged with all costs of
operating the government for which a separate fund has not been established.

School Unrestricted Fund — The School Unrestricted Fund is used to account for the budgeted
resources devoted to financing the general operations of the school department. Medicaid, Tuition
revenues, State aid for Education and Town appropriations are reported as revenue in this fund.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

This fund type accounts for operations that are organized to be self-supporting through user charges.
The fund included in this category is as follows:

Enterprise Funds - are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy management control, accountability, or other
purposes.

Internal Service Fund - is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
where employee medical plan costs are allocated to various Town departments for services provided.

Major Enterprise Funds — The Sewer Fund is used to account for sewer use fees and the expenses
associated with providing sewer services to town residents and other communities.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

These funds account for assets held by the Town as a trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, and other units of governments. These funds are as follows:

Agency Funds - are used to account for funds that are to be used for educational and welfare
expenditures and for funds held in escrow for other parties.

Pension Trust Fund - is used to account for funds that are to be used for the payment of retirement
benefits to former employees. The Pension Committee oversees this fund.
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement Focus — Government Wide Financial Statements

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, the
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expense, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange
and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. :

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, licenses, interest
revenue and charges for services. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the
government also are recognized as revenue. Fines, permits, and parking meter revenues are not susceptible to
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. In determining when to recognize
intergovernmental revenues (grants and entitlements), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual
programs are used as guidance. Revenues are recognized when the eligibility requirements have been met.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between fiduciary fund types. These charges have been
reclassified as other receivables or other liabilities.

Amounts reported as program revenues included 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, fines, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Measurement Focus — Fund Financial Statements

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the fund financial statements is determined by its
measurement focus. All Governmental Fund Types accounted for using a “current financial resources”
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All Proprietary Fund Types and Fiduciary Fund Types excluding agency funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated
with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net assets) is segregated
amounts invested in capital net of related debt and unreserved net assets components. Agency funds, which are
fiduciary funds have no measurement focus,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges for services. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of operations and maintenance, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

All Governmental Fund Types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual, i.e. both measurable
and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter, (generally
defined as 60 days after the close of the fiscal year) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.

Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines, forfeits, and miscellaneous revenue are recorded as revenues
when received in cash. Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes and investment earnings. Fines
and permits are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable,
except expenditures for debt service and other long-term obligations, which are recognized when paid.

Non-current portions of long-term receivables of Governmental Fund Types are reported on their balance sheets,
in spite of their spending measurement focus. Special reporting treatments are used to indicate however, that
they should not be considered “available expendable resources” since they do not represent net current assets.
Recognition of Governmental Fund Type revenues represented by non-current receivables is deferred until they
become current receivables.

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for Governmental Fund Types excludes
amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term
amounts are not recognized as Governmental Fund Type expenditures or fund liabilities. They are instead
reported as Long-term Liabilities — Governmental Activities.

In applying the “susceptible to accrual” concept to intergovernmental revenues the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two
types of such revenues. For one type, amounts must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any
amounts will be paid to the Town; therefore revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded.

For the other type, revenues are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and revocable only for failure
to comply with the prescribed requirements, such as a Community Development Block Grant. These resources
are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if they meet the “available” criteria.

All Proprietary Funds and Pension Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20, the Town of West Warwick has
elected to apply to all Proprietary Fund Types and Similar Trust Funds all applicable GASB Pronouncements, as
well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989; FASB Statements and
Interpretations, APB opinions and ARBs unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Propriety Fund Types consider all highly liquid investments
with a maturity date of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Investments

Investments are Government Securities, Commercial Paper and various types of corporate stocks and bonds held
in the Governmental and Fiduciary Fund types, which are recorded at fair value. Fair value is determined
wherever possible, by use of published quoted anounts, where quotes are not available, formal valuations are
obtained.

When discounts or premiums are present, the Town will capitalize and amortize the amount over the period of
the related investment.

Receivables

Accounts receivable are recorded in the General, Special Revenue and Enterprise funds. The Town uses the
direct write off method to account for bad debt in both the Government - Wide Financial Statements and the
Fund Financial Statements. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivables are based upon historical trends
and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. The current years allowance is $865,585.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies (except gasoline and postage) are considered to be expenditures at the time of purchase.
Inventories of gasoline and postage are recorded at cost on a first in first out basis and maintained on a periodic
system and are recorded as expenditures when consumed.

Capital Assets
Capital assets in Governmental Fund type operations are accounted for using the “current financial resources”

measurement focus. Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure (e.g. road,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activity columns in the government-wide financial statements. The Town defines capital assets as
assets with an individual cost of more than $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost (for certain assets acquired prior to 1960).
Pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the historical cost of infrastructure assets
(retroactive to January 1, 1979) is included as part of the governmental capital assets reported in the government-
wide statements. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives are recorded as expenditures as incurred.

The Town capitalizes certain interest costs in accordance with GASB Code Section 1400 as part of constructed
assets. Interest is capitalized throughout the construction period in the Capital projects fund prior to the assets
being transferred to the governmental fund and placed in service.

Property, plant and equipment for Proprietary Fund Types are valued at historical cost. Additions, improvements
and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred

for repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Estimated
Description Lives (years
Autos and information processing equipment 5
Trucks 8
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 10
Heavy equipment 25
Buildings, infrastructure, water lines and fire hydrants 40
Sewer mains and certain water assets 75-100

Deferred Revenues ;

Deferred revenues represent funds received in advance of being owed or receivables, which will be collected and
included in revenues of future fiscal years. In the General Fund, deferred revenues relate to property tax
receivables, which were received prior to June 30th, plus delinquent balances less amounts due as of the balance
sheet date and received sixty days thereafter.

Vacation, Sick Leave, and Other Compensated Absences

Unused vacation leave is paid upon an employee's termination. Sick leave not taken by municipal workers is
paid 100% up to 100 days, for police and fire departments employees are paid 100% up to 130 days and 50% for
the next 50 days and 25% for the next 50 days. School department employees are paid compensated absences
based on various employee agreements. For Governmental Fund Types accrued compensated absences are
presented as a current liability for those amounts expected to be paid with current financial resources. In
governmental funds compensated absence expenditures are only reported when matured. For those compensated
absences not to be paid with current financial resources, the liability is recorded in the Statement of Net Assets of
the Government-Wide Financial Statements. At June 30, 2012 the long-term portion that amount was
$3,245,683. For Proprietary Fund Types accrued compensated absences are recorded as a liability within those
funds. The Town’s policy has been to use the general fund to liquidate the liability for compensated absences.
However, there are amounts other than those which are liabilities on proprietary funds.

Inter-fund Transactions
Inter-fund transactions except advances are accounted for as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine transfers of
equity between funds are considered transfers.

Property Taxes
The Town is permitted by state law to levy property taxes. Current tax collections for the Town were
approximately 96.7% of the total December 31, 2010 levy net of adjustments.

The Town's fiscal 2012 property taxes were levied in July of 2011 on assessed valuation as of December 31,
2010. Upon levy, taxes are billed quarterly and are due on July 15, October 15, January 15, and April 15. Failure
to mail payments by due dates will result in lien on taxpayer's property. Assessed values are established by Tax
Assessor's Office and are currently calculated at 100% of assessed value for real estate and 100% of market
value for motor vehicles. A revaluation of all real estate was completed as of December 31, 2003.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as
follows:

¢ Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes
the long-term amount of interfund loans.

e Restricted - Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are
either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation (Town ordinances). Enabling legislation authorizes the Town to assess, levy, charge, or
otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally
enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the
legislation. Legal enforceability means that the Town can be compelled by an external party-such as
citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for
the purposes specified by the legislation.

¢ Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes imposed by formal action (ordinance or resolution) of Town Council. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless Town Council removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) it employed to previously
commit those amounts. In contrast to fund balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed
fund balance classification may be redeployed for other purposes with appropriate due process.
Constraints imposed on the use of committed amounts are imposed by Town Council, separate from the
authorization to raise the underlying revenue; therefore, compliance with these constraints is not
considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations
to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying
those contractual requirements.

e Assigned — Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Town for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In
governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining
amount that is not restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended
uses established by the Town Council.

o Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes
all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the
unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific
purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

Application of Funds

The Town applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (cominitted, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund
balance classifications could be used.
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NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Net Assets .

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments. The Town applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Revenues for governmental funds are recorded when they are determined to be both measurable and available.
Generally, tax revenues, fees and non-tax revenues are recognized when received. Grants from other
governments are recognized when qualifying expenditures are incurred. Expenditures for governmental funds
are recorded when the related liability is incurred. Revenues and expenses of proprietary fund types are
recognized using the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized when earned and expenses as
incurred. ’

Program Revenues and Fxpenses

In the statement of activities specific revenues are allocated to program expenses due to their direct relationships.
Collections for licenses, fees, tickets and fmes are among some of the revenue sources that are program
revenues. Indirect expenses are not allocated to functions in the statement of activities.

NOTE 2—-BUDGETARY DATA AND BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

In accordance with the West Warwick Home Rule Charter, the Town has formally established budgetary
accounting control for its General Fund and the School Unrestricted Fund, which is a Special Revenue Fund.
The General Fund is subject to an annual operating budget that is prepared by the administration of the Town
Manager and submitted to the Town Council for approval. The General Fund budget is then presented at the
Financial Town meeting to the Citizens of the Town for their approval. The School Unrestricted Fund is subject
to an annual operating budget approved by the School Committee and adopted in total by the Town Council as
part of General Fund budget. The annual operating budgets' appropriation amounts are supported by revenue
estimates and take into account the elimination of accumulated deficits and the re-appropriation of accumulated
surpluses to the extent necessary. The General Fund and Special Revenue - School Unrestricted Fund's annual
operating budgets are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting which is not inconformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. The budget to actual presentation in the required supplementary information is
reflected on the budgetary basis. The only Special Revenue fund that has a legally enacted budget is the School
Unrestricted Fund. Therefore, the budget and actual figures presented for Special Revenue Funds in the
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual include
only this fund. ’

Appropriations in addition to those contained in the annual operating budgets, except for the purpose of meeting
a public emergency, are made upon the recommendation of the Town Manager with the Director of Finance's
certification as to General Fund surplus to meet such appropriations and with Town Council's approval and
approval of the citizens at a Financial Town meeting. There were no additional supplemental appropriations for
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NOTE 2 — BUDGETARY DATA AND BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE (continued)

the year ended June 30, 2012. Amendments to the operating budgets that do not result in additional
appropriations may be made within departments by means of a transfer. The Finance Director has authority to
make such transfers within departments for the first nine months of the fiscal year. Any other departmental
transfers made and transfers made outside the departmental level in the last three months of the fiscal year-
require Town Council approval by ordinance.

CHARTER PROVISION DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE

The Town has established a formal policy on the minimum level of unreserved fund balance that should be
maintained in the general fund. The Town’s Home Rule Charter Section 509 Cash Reserve fund states: The
town council shall provide for a cash reserve fund which shall be used as a source of funds to meet Town
obligations in anticipation of tax receipts, anticipated from state or federal government or other sources. The
Town manager shall include in his budget recommendations a sum equal to no less than .35 percent (.0035) of
the total operating budget to be paid into the said cash reserve fund until said reserve shall equal 5 percent (.05)
of the operating budget.

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Legal Debt Margin

The Town's legal debt margin as set forth by State Statute is limited to three percent of total assessed value,
which approximates $2,198,240,809 based on the December 31, 2010 assessment. As of June 30, 2012 the
Town's debt is under the debt limit by $42,129,224. In addition to the bonding authority granted under §45-12-2
of the RI General Laws, the Town of West Warwick can authorize bond issues pursuant to a special act of the RI
General Assembly. Bond issues authorized by a special act of the General Assembly are normally not subject to
any legal debt limit, but are subject to financial constraints such as the Town's ability and willingness to service
the bonded debt. See page 106 in the statistical section for computation of the legal debt margin.

NOTE 4 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR NET ASSETS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS
The following individual funds had deficit equity balances as of June 30, 2012:

Governmental Funds

Planning challenge grant $3,325 ok
Riverwalk fund $71,542 ok
Open space Recreation $77 *E
JAG $3,050 ok
Community development $151,153 **
School unrestricted fund $1,668,186 *

* The deficit balance will require a future administrative plan to either reduce its future
expenditures or to fund this deficit.

** The deficits will be eliminated by future reimbursements from either another Town
Fund the State or the Federal Government.
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NOTE 5 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits: The Town maintains deposits in various financial institutions that are carried at cost except for those
amounts which are carried as petty cash. The carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance
sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents". '

Investments: Investment of all idle funds are made through national banks or trust companies, providing that the
financial conditions and integrity of the institution or institutions are verifiable and can be monitored. The
investment of funds must be in direct obligations of the United States Government and “money market
instruments” rated “A” or better. Investments in any one institution shall not exceed five (5) percent of that
institutions capital and surplus as set forth in the institutions most recent audited financial statements. All
investments will be made as would be done by prudent men of discretion and intelligence in such matters who
are seeking a reasonable income and-preservation of their capital.

Interest Rate Risk: The Town limits its exposure to fair value losses arising from changes in interest rates by
structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations,
thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity, and investing operating funds
primarily in shorter-term securities, money market funds, or similar investment pools, although the Government
does not have a formal policy relating to a specific investment-related risk.

Concentrations: The Town policy is to maimtain a diversified portfolio to minimize the risk of loss resulting from
over concentration of assets in a specific maturity.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits: This is the risk that, in the event of failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not
be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. As of June 30, 2012, $11,099,387 of the Town’s balances of $15,594,093 on deposit with
financial institutions were both insured and collateralized.

Investment of all funds are required to be made through national banks or trust companies, providing that the
financial conditions and integrity of said institution or institutions are verifiable and can be monitored. The
investment of funds must be in direct obligations of the United States Government and “money market
instruments” rated A or better. Investment in any one institution can not exceed five (5) percent of that
institution’s capital and surplus as set forth in the institution’s most recent audited financial statements. All
investments must be made as would be done by prudent men of discretion and intelligence in such matters who
are seeking a reasonable income and low risk.

Investments: This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a

transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in
the possession of another party.
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NOTE 5 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Cash and investments of the Town consist of the following at June 30, 2012

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposits with financial institutions § 15,594,093
Investments

Pension Trust Fund:

Cash and Money Funds 2,332,930

U.S. Government Bonds 3,168,032

Corporate Debt 2,039,562

Equities 18,925,273
Total Pension Investments 26,465,797
Total Cash and Investments $ 42,059,890

Cash and investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,386,802
Fiduciary Funds
Cash and cash equivalents 207,291
Investments 26,465,797
26,673,088
Total Cash and Investments $ 42,059,890

Interest Rate Risk: This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. Information about the exposure of the town’s debt type investments to this risk
using the segment time distribution model is as follows:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less Than 1-5 6-10 Over
Type of Investment Value 1 Year Years Years 10 Years
Government Bonds $ 3,168,032 $ 145,308 $ 620498 $ 263,841 $ 2,138,385
Corporate Debt 2,039,562 102,327 423,399 945,538 568,298
Total $ 5,207,594 § 247635 $ 1,043,897 $ 1,209,379 $ 2,706,683
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NOTE 5 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized rating
organization. U.S government securities or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not
considered to have credit risk exposure. The list below provides a rating of all corporate debt held by the Town.

Corporate
Average Rating Bonds

Aaa $ 623,969
Aal 35,489
Aa2 60,994
Aa3 - 79,245
Al 108,967
A2 425,133
A3 146,857
Baal 85,273
Baa2 379,486
Baa3 94,149
$ 2,039,562

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES

The Town is responsible for assessing, collecting, and distributing property taxes in accordance with enabling
state legislation.

All property taxes for fund statement purposes are recognized in compliance with NCGA Interpretation-3
(Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes), which states that such revenue is recorded when it becomes measurable
and available. Available means due, or past due and receivable within the current period and collected no longer
than 60 days after the close of the current period. The Town does not use an allowance method for bad debts. It
directly writes off receivables as they become un-collectible as per state law.

NOTE 7 — PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

The Town defines capital assets as assets with an individual cost of more than $10,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of five years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost (for certain
assets acquired prior to 1960). The following schedule lists prior year balances and current year activity for all
Governmental Fund capital asset transactions.
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NOTE 7 - INFORMATION ABOUT CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Capital asset activity for Gvoernmental Activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 6,100,113 $ - $ - $ 6,100,113

Construction in Progress 207,752 - 207,752
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,307,865 - 6,307,865
Other capital assets:
Land improvements 1,041,755 - 1,041,755
Infrastructure 48,390,536 575,261 48,965,797
Buildings and improvements 80,681,428 187,945 80,869,373
Motor vehicles 1,979,046 499,771 2,478,817
Office furniture and equipment 2,162,079 - 2,162,079
Machinery and equipment 3,822,288 173,495 3,995,783
Total other capital assets at historical cost 138,077,132 1,436,472 139,513,604
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 1,010,976 30,779 1,041,755
Infrastructure 28,705,207 1,693,883 30,399,090
Buildings and improvements 58,789,885 1,294,750 60,084,635
Motor vehicles 1,083,945 133,786 1,217,731
Office furniture and equipment 1,356,368 116,971 1,473,339
Machinery and equipment 3,295,557 285,904 3,581,461
Total accumulated depreciation 94.241,938 3,556,073 97,798,011
Governmental activities capital assets, net 50,143,059 $ (2,119,601) $ 48,023,458
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities:
Legislative, judicial and general administrative $ 2,290,949
Public safety 430,120
Public works 102,471
Parks and recreation 528,864
Library 22,294
Education 181,375
Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 3,556,073
36 (continued)
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JUNE 30, 2012

Capital asset activity for Business-Type Activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Plant facilities and equipment
Extensions and mains
Total other capital assets at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant facilities and equipment
Extensions and mains
Total accumulated depreciation
Business-type activities capital assets, net

Primary Government

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Business-type activities:
Sewer Fund

Total business-type activities depreciation expense

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 52,900 $ - $ - $ 52,900
7,525,789 242746 - 7,768,535
7,578,689 242746 - 7,821,435
59,968,706 - 1,883,269 58,085,437
37,488,865 - - 37,488,865
97,457,571 - 1,883,269 95,574,302
13,865,651 1,186,670 - 15,052,321
11,486,094 585,859 - 12,071,953
25,351,745 1,772,529 - 27,124,274
$ 79,684,515 $ (1,529,783) $ 1,883,269 $ 76,271,463

8 1772529
$ 1,772,529
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NOTE 8 - DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET AND THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
"Total fund balances" of the Towns' governmental funds $6,93725 differs from "net assets" of governmental activities ($25,642,386)
reported in the statement of net assets. This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net assets

versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets. The effect of the differences is illustrated below.

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Assets

Total Long-term Reclassifications Statement
Governmental Assets/ and Net Assets
Funds Liabilities (1) Eliminations (2) Totals
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,284,210 $ - $ - $  12,284210
Receivables:
Property taxes, net 2,367,808 - - 2,367,808
Intergovernmental 1,104,814 - - 1,104,814
Other 179,175 - 606,443 785,618
Internal balances 4,713,872 - (4,713,872) -
Inventory 60,929 - - 60,929
Other assets (net) 1,370,571 - - 1,370,571
Deferred charges 72,480 395,335 - 467,815
Property, plant and equipment - net - 41,715,593 - 41,715,593
Assets not being depreciated-CIP - 207,752 - 207,752
Assets not being depreciated-Land - 6,100,113 - 6,100,113
Total assets 3 22,153,859 $ 48,418,793 $ (4,107,429) $ 66,465,223
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued items $ 5,648,019 $ - $ 629,529 $ 6,277,548
Accrued expenses 1,221,750 273,391 - 1,495,141
Internal balances 6,322,330 - (4,736,958) 1,585,372
Deferred revenue 2,023,035 (1,773,583) - 249,452
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year - 1,764,673 - 1,764,673
Due in more than one year - 80,735,423 - 80,735,423
Total liabilities 15,215,134 80,999,904 (4,107,429) 92,107,609
Fund Balances/Net Assets
Total fund balances/net assets 6,938,725 (32,581,111) - (25,642,386)
Total liabilities and fund balances/net assets $ 22,153,859 $ 48,418,793 $ (4,107,429) $§ 66,465,223
(1) When capital assets (land, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased
or constructed, the cost of these assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the
statement of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the Town as a whole.
Cost of capital assets $ 145,821,469
Accumulated depreciation (97,798,011)
$ 48,023,458
Because the focus of governmental funds is on short term financing, some assets will not be available to pay
for current-period expenditures. Those assets (for example receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in
the governmental funds and thus are not included in the fund balance. Also some expenditures in the governmental
activates do not reflect current period charges.
Adjustment of deferred revenue $ 2,017,179
Deferred bond cost 395335
Bond premium (243,596)
Accrued interest (273,391)
$ 1,895,527
Long-term liabilities applicable to the Towns' governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period
and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long-term are reported in the
statement of net assets.
Bonds payable $  (23,818,000)
Leases Payable (237,671)
Accrued compensated absences (3,245,683)
Net OPEB obligation (11,919,373)
Net pension obligation (43,279,369)

$  (82,500,096)

(2) The Intemnal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of
medical benefit claims. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are included
in the Governmental Activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Internal balances
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2012

NOTE 10 - INFORMATION ABOUT LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Governmental long-term liabilities do not appear in the fund financial statements but rather are a reconciling item in the presentation
of the government-wide financial statements and are included in the statement of net assets. Long-Term liabilities directly related to

and intended to be paid from the Proprietary Fund Types are included in the accounts of such fund.

The town reports a long-term liability of the primary government in either governmental type activities or business type activities.

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2011 Additions Retirements June 30,2012 One Year
Governmental Activities
Bonds payable $ 25,423,000 $ - $ 1,605,000 $ 23,818,000 $ 1,630,000
Capital leases payable 292,206 - 54,535 237,671 56,421
Total bonds payable 25,715,206 - 1,659,535 24,055,671 1,686,421
Other liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 3,281,830 - 36,147 3,245,683 78,252
Net OPEB Obligation 9,255,309 2,664,064 - 11,919,373 -
Net Pension Benefit 35,273,050 8,006,319 - 43,279,369 -
Total other liabilities 47,810,189 10,670,383 36,147 58,444,425 78,252
Governmental Activities long-term liabilities  $ 73,525,395 $10,670,383 $ 1,695,682 $ 82,500,096 $ 1,764,673
Business-Type Activities
Sewer Department notes payable 24,533,000 - 1,705,000 22,828,000 1,716,000
Total notes payable 24,533,000 - 1,705,000 22,828,000 1,716,000
Total long-term liabilities $ 24,533,000 $ - $ 1,705,000 $ 22,828,000 $ 1,716,000
The following schedule summarizes the Town's bonds and notes
Interest Rates Principal Due Dates
Governmental bonds 1.47.% -7.45% $23,818,000 2013-2029
Enterprise Funds notes payable 0% - 1.645% 22,828,000 2013-2028
Total All Funds $46.,646,000
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JUNE 30,2012
NOTE 10 - INFORMATION ABOUT LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

The debt service through maturity for the above Governmental bonds are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 1,630,000 $ 958,046 $ 2,588,046
2014 1,535,000 894,460 2,429,460
2015 1,495,000 832,658 2,327,658
2016 1,525,000 770,597 2,295,597
2017 1,555,000 705,216 2,260,216
2018 1,590,000 636,003 2,226,003
2019 1,395,000 564,441 1,959,441
2020 1,445,000 498,430 1,943,430

Thereafter 11,648,000 1,650,854 13,298,854

TOTALS $ 23,818,000 $ 7,510,705 $ 31,328,705

The debt service through maturity for the above Enterprise bonds are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 1,716,000 $ 285,048 $ 2,001,048
2014 1,726,000 265,418 1,991,418
2015 1,735,000 245,289 1,980,289
2016 1,705,000 225,037 1,930,037
2017 1,717,000 204,678 1,921,678
2018 1,728,000 183,853 1,911,853
2019 1,740,000 162,572 1,902,572
2020 1,754,000 140,849 1,894,849

Thereafter 9,007,000 391,123 9,398,123

TOTALS $ 22,828,000 $ 2,103,867 $ 24,931,867
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 11 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Inter-fund receivables represent loans to various funds when there are either timing differences between funds
expended and revenue received for use in operations or operational revenue do not meet current year
expenditures/expenses. These amounts are expected to be repaid at certain future dates.

Below are balances at June 30, 2012:

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Due from other funds Due to other funds

General Fund $ 382,312 $ 5,151,053
Special Revenue Funds:

School Unrestricted 3,203,402 742,810

School Restricted 338,241 361,420

Town Restricted 640,106 4,181,749 67,047 1,171,277
Capital Projects: 149,811 -
Trust and Agency Funds:

Pension Trust Fund - 6,443
Proprietary Funds

Sewer 1,504,532 -

Municipal Court 80,840 -

Internal Service 338,351 1,923,723 308,822 308,822

$ 6,637,595 $ 6,637,595

Transfers are made to provide revenue for annual expénditures of various funds. Transfers are not expected to be
repaid to the originating (source) fund. Listed below is the transfer activity for fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS .

Transfers from Transfers to
Fund / Department other funds other funds
General Fund $ 194,615 $47,018,292
Special Revenue (School Department) 46,779,622 -
Special Revenue Funds (Town) 54,055 -
Special Revenue Funds (School) - -
Capital Project Funds 168,038 168,038
Enterprise Funds - 10,000
Totals $47.196.330 $47.196,330

43 (continued)



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 12 - FUND EQUITY RESERVES

The following reserves are recorded in the fund financial statements at June 30, 2012:

School
Special Other
Revenue Non-Major Total
General Unrestricted Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund ~ Funds Funds
Fund balances:
Nonspendable fund balances:
Inventory $ 60,929 $ - 8 -3 60,929
Deferred charges 6,097 66,383 - 72,480
Restricted fund balances:
Capital projects fund - - 139,169 139,169
Special revenue funds - - 1,742,871 1,742,871
QZAB bond sinking fund 1,128,971 - - 1,128,971
Assigned fund balances:
Capital improvements 16,605 - - 16,605
Unassigned, reported in non-major:
General fund 5,741,416 - - 5,741,416
Special revenue funds - (1,734,569) (229,147) (1,963,716)
Total fund balances $ 6,954,018 $ (1,668,186) $ 1,652,893 $ 6,938,725

NOTE 13 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES
A. Litigation

During the ordinary course of its operations, the Town is a party to various claims, other legal actions and
complaints. These various legal actions include disputes in property valuations and torts for which the Town has
been named as a defendant. In the opinion of the Town's management and legal counsel, other than the matter
stated above they do not anticipated any of them to have a material financial impact or at this time their legal
counsel has been unable to assess liability, if any, on the part of the Town.

B. Federally Assisted Programs - Compliance Audits

The Town participates in a number of federally assisted programs. The audits of these programs through the
year ended June 30, 2011 were audited in connection with the accompanying financial statements under the
Single Audit Concept and the auditor's reports thereon are presented in the Single Audit Report. Management
believes that the amounts, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed, will not be material to the financial
position of the Town. '
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NOTE 14 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

For 2012, the Town of West-Warwick had four significant prior period adjustments:

In prior years from 2007-2010, accrued School contributions to the Town Retirement plan were not
accounted for on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets in the amount of $1,707,174. A prior period
adjustment in this amount is reflected as increases to Fiduciary Net Assets.

In 2011, a capital lease in the amount of $292,206 was signed but not identified by the Finance
Department. In 2012, a prior period adjustment in this amount is reflected in the Statement of Activities
as a decrease in Net Assets for Capital Leases identified.

In July of 2012, the Town and School Department settled a legal claim, which resulted in the School
Department receiving the amount of $1,929,338 for prior maintenance of effort funding not appropriated
by the Town. In this settlement, the Town is ordered to pay the $1,929,338 for back maintenance of
effort, but also received a credit for prior legal fees incurred for the settlement in the amount of
$150,650. In 2012, a prior period adjustment in the amount of $150,650 is recorded in the Statement of
Activities as an increase in net assets and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances as an increase in fund balance. The net transfer of
$1,929,338 between the Town and School is reflected in the statement also, but nets to $0 for fund
presentation purposes.

In July of 2012, it was noted that an assumption change was made in the completion of the annual OPEB
actuarial report. The correction of this assumption change resulted in a prior period adjustment of
$5,651,297. This adjustment was positive to the Town’s Net Assets, as the adjustment reduced the
amount owed to the OPEB plan.

NOTE 15 - OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

In addition to the pension benefits described below, the Town provides post employment health care benefits in
accordance with Town union contracts. These benefits are for continued full family or individual health care for
“the employee groups as described below. A separate audited GAAP basis report is not issued for this plan.

Plan Types

Medical: Blhe Cross/Blue Shield Clas‘sic or Healthmate
Dental: Delta Dental of Rhode Island

Eligibility

Police & Fire: Any age with 20 years.

School Certified: Any age with 15 years of service, any age with 25 years of service any age with 28
years of service. (cost sharing changes with each)

Municipal Employees: Any age with 25 years of service or age 60 with 10 years of service.

School Non-Certified: Any age with 25 years of service or age 60 with 20 years of service.
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NOTE 15 - OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Benefit/Cost Sharing
Police Fire: The town pays 100% of the medical and dental premiums until eligible for Medicare for
those retiring on/before 7/1/11. For those retiring after 7/1/11, contributions amiount to 1% of pension
benefit.
School Certified: The Town pays 100% of medical premiums for 4 years after retirement for those who
retire with 15 years of service. The Town pays 100% of the medical premium until eligible for Medicare
for those who retire with 25 years of service. The Town pays 100% of both medical and dental premiums
for those who retire with 28 years of service until Medicare eligible.
Municipal Employees: The Town pays 100% of the medical and dental premiums until eligible for
Medicare for those hired prior to 7/1/10. For those hired after 7/1/10, contributions requirements are 12%
if base salary less than $47,500, 16% for salaries above $47,500.
School Non-Certified: The Town pays 100% of medical and dental premiums for 5 years after
retirement.

Spouse Benefit - Yes
Surviving Spouse Benefit — Yes until Medicare eligible

Membership
At June 30, 2012, active membership consisted of 528 employees, while inactive (retiree) membership consisted

of 547 employees.

Funding Policy
Contribution requirements are negotiated between the Town and the respective unions. The Town is required to

contribute the cost of medical/drug and dental benefits, less the amount of any applicable co-payment in effect at
the time of retirement. For the year-ended June 30, 2012, the plan operated on a pay as you go basis and no
provision has been made to fund future benefits to be provided to plan members.

Annual OPEB Funded Status and net OPEB Obligation

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded ‘ Percentage
Valuation Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
July 1, (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
2008 $0 $136,587,286  $136,587,286 0.0% N/A N/A
2010 $0 $85,956,352 $85,956,352 0.0% N/A N/A

2012 $0 $107,329,661  $107,329,661 0.0% N/A N/A
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NOTE 15— OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: Below are the required pension obligation presentations per
GASB 45 for the period ending June 30, 2012.

6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012
Annual required contribution $ 5327511 $ 7,529,803 $ 7,552,618
Interset on OPEB obligation 230,892 239,307 370,212
Adjustment to annual required contribution (241,842) (265,401) (392,972)
Annual OPEB cost 5,316,561 7,503,709 7,529,858
Contributions made 3,573,395 4,231,074 ‘ 4,865,794
Increase (decrease) in OPEB obligation 1,743,166 3,272,635 2,664,064
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 4,239,508 5,982,674 9,255,309
Net OPEB obligation end of year $ 5982674 $ 9.255.309 $ 11919373

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing benefit cost between the employer and the plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations. Below are the actuarial assumptions used to project future cost of the plan.

Valuation Date: July 1, 2012
Interest Rate 4.00%
2008 Medical Trend Rate 9.00%
Ultimate Medical Trend Rate 5.00%
Year Ultimate Medical Trend Rate Reached 2021
Remaining Amortization Period 25.97 Years
Annual Payroll Increase 2.50%

NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS

A. Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (ERS)

All Town of West Warwick, Rhode Island certified school personnel participate in the Employees’ Retirement
System of the State of Rhode Island (“System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement
system. ’

Pension Reform, legislative changes, and subsequent litigation

In November 2011, the State enacted The Rhode Island Retirement Security Act of 201 1(the Act), as described

in S1111A and H6319A.The Act makes broad changes to ERSRI effective Julyl, 2012. The most significant
changes include:
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (ERS) (continued)

Changing the structure of the retirement program from a traditional defined benefit plan to a hybrid plan
designed with a smaller defined benefit plan and a supplemental defined contribution plan.

Changing the automatic COLA from a CPI related formula to a formula contingent on the actual
investment performance over time.

Suspension/reduction of the COLA during times when the funded ratio is lower than targeted 80%
levels. State employees, teachers, BHDDH nurses, correctional officers, judges (including pay as you
g0), and state police (including pay as you go) will be aggregated to determine if the 80% requirement
has been reached. )

Re-amortization of the significantly reduced Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) to 25 years
from the 19 year schedule as of June 30, 2010.

Teachers and Public Safety personnel not covered by Social Security (except State Police) will
participate in additional defined contribution allocations equal to 2% member plus 2% employer for
Teachers and 3% member plus 3% employer for Public Safety.

Included within the significant changes noted above, there are certain rules for transitioning from the prior
defined benefit structure to the smaller defined benefit plan going forward. Most notably:

The accumulated benefit multiplier as of June30,2012 will be preserved and any changes to accruals
will only be made prospectively.

The final average compensation as calculated on June30,2012 will be preserved and any changes to the
definition of salary or to the averaging period will not impact the final average compensation used to
determine the retirement benefit until after the new calculation is greater than the preserved calculation.
The calculated accrued benefit as of June 30, 2012 using the accumulated benefit multiplier as of that
date and the final average compensation as of that date can be commenced on the date the member
would have reached retirement eligibility prior to the Act if the member retires on that retirement date.
Any past post-retirement benefit adjustments that have been given will be preserved. Only future
adjustments will be modified and/or suspended.

All members currently eligible to retire will retain the ability to retire in accordance with the provisions
prior to the Act.

Current State Employees and Teachers who have five years of service as of June 30, 2012 will have a
new retirement age delayed in proportion to the amount of service they have earned as of June 30, 2012
and to their current expected retirement age, but not less than age 59. In no circumstance will the
retirement age of the member reduce from the retirement age prior to the Act.

Current Public Safety personnel who are age 45 with ten years of service as of June 30, 2012, and had a
retirement age prior to the Act based on continued service prior to age 52, will have unreduced
retirement eligibility at age 52. A

A plan that has had four consecutive benefit adjustments suspended due to the 80% funding criteria will
be eligible to receive an adjustment in the fifth year regardless of the funding level.
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)
A. Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (ERS) (continued)
Plan Description

State Statute establishes the following eligibility and benefit provisions. All certified school personnel are
eligible to participate in the System if they are certified by the Board of Regents, engaged in teaching as
principal occupation, and are regularly employed on at least a half time basis. The plan provides a two-tier
benefit structure referred to as Schedules A and B.

Schedule A Benefits

Schedule A benefits are available to members who possessed 10 years or more of contributory service on or
before July 1, 2005. Schedule A provides unreduced benefits of 1.7% of earnings for each of the first ten years of
service; 1.9% for each of the next ten years; 3.0% per year for each of the next fourteen years; and 2% for the
35th year. Joint and survivor options are available as well as the Service Retirement Allowance (SRA) Plus
option that provides for the payment of a larger benefit before the attainment of age sixty-two (62) and a reduced
amount thereafter. The reduced amount is equal to the benefit before age sixty-two (62), including cost-of-living
increases, minus the member's estimated social security benefit payable at age sixty-two (62). The maximum
benefit is 80% of final average earnings after 35 years of service. Such benefits are available to members at least
age 60 with 10 years of service, or after 28 years at any age. A different benefit formula applies to State
correctional officers who may retire at age 50 if they have 20 years of service. Benefits for all employees are
based on the average of the highest three consecutive years' earnings, exclusive of overtime.

On the third January after retirement, a cost-of-living increase of 3% (compounded annually) is provided
independent of actual changes in the consumer price index. The plan also provides non-service-connected
disability benefits after five years of service; service-connected disability pensions with no minimum service
requirement; vested benefits after ten years of service; survivor's benefits for service-connected death; and
certain lump sum death benefits.

Schedule B Benefits

Schedule B benefits are provided to members who had less than 10 years of contributory service on or before
July 1, 2005. For Schedule B members, the plan provides unreduced benefits of 1.6% of earnings for each of the
first ten years of service; 1.8% for each of the next ten years; 2.0% per year for years 21 through 25 inclusive;
2.25% per year for years 26 through 30 inclusive; 2.50% per year for years 31 through 37 inclusive and 2.25%
for the 38th year. Only single life, and joint and survivor options are available. The maximum benefit is 75% of
his or her average highest three (3) years of compensation after 38 years of service. Such benefits are available to
members at least age 65 with 10 years of service, or after 29 years of service and age 59. Actuarially reduced
retirement is available at age 55 and 20 years of service, the benefit is reduced actuarially for each month that the
age of the member is less than sixty-five (65) years.

On the month following the third anniversary date of the retirement, and on the month following the anniversary
date of each succeeding year, a cost-of-living increase of 3% (compounded annually) or the percentage of
increase in the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) as published by the United States
Department of Labor Statistics, determined as of September 30 of the prior calendar year, whichever is less is
provided for Schedule B members.
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)
A. Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (ERS) (continued)
Funding Policy

Rhode Island general laws set the contribution rates for participating State employees at 9.5% of salary. Annual
contributions by both employers and the State on behalf of those employees are determined by actuaries and
assessed as percentage of participants’ payroll. The Town was required to contribute 13.23%, 11.25%, and
11.25%, for all full-time employees for fiscal years 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The required
contributions include (a) normal costs; (b) payments to amortize the unfunded frozen actuarial accrued liability
as of June 30, 1999 over 30 years; and (c) interest on the unfunded frozen actuarial liability. Normal cost is
determined using the entry age normal cost method with frozen initial liability. Both employers and employees
contribute 1% of the first $9,600 of salary for survivor benefits. A variety of significant actuarial assumptions
are used and these assumptions are summarized below:

As prescribed by Rhode Island general law, the State pays the entire portion of the annual required contribution
attributable to the costs of contributions deferred by the State in prior years plus 40% of contributions assessed to
employers on payroll not reimbursable through Federal programs. This resulted in contribution rates paid by the
State on behalf of the School Department of 9.09% of non-federally reimbursable payrolls totaling $2,145,527
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. These on-behalf payments of for the Town’s employees were recognized
as revenues and expenditures during the period.

The School Department does not have any investments or related party investments with the State Plan.

Required contributions:

Required Percentage

Fiscal Years Ending Pension Cost Contributed
June 30, 2010 $ 2,700,405 100%
June 30, 2011 $ 2,720,817 100%
June 30, 2012 $ 3,009,669 100%

In accordance with GASB 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers,” the
Town has determined that there are no assets or liabilities relating to the funding requirements of the plan.

The plans trend information showing the System’s progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due is presented in the State of Rhode Island’s Employee Retirement System’s June 30, 2011 annual
financial report which, may be obtained from the administrative offices of the State of Rhode Island Retirement
Board, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, Rhode Island. This report is the most recent report available from the
State who administers the Plan.
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Town Plan)

Plan Description

The Town contributes to the Town Plan, a single-employer public employee retirement plan established in
accordance with Town Charter. The plan is considered part of the Town's financial reporting entity and is
included in the Town's annual financial report as a pension trust fund and is nof reported separately as a stand
alone report. The information provided in this report is limited to the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2012, the

latest actuarial report available.

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employees entitled to

benefits but not yet receiving benefits 331
Inactive members 22
Active participants 321
TOTAL 674

The Plan's eligibility requirements are as follows:

Police and Fire — 1) Full-time permanent appointment to the departments and completion of one year of

continuous service. 2) Fire members must be hired prior to their 31st birthday, Police members prior to their
28th birthday.

Other Departments - Full-time employee, completion of six months of continuous service, and employed prior
to age 55. A full-time employee is one who is regularly employed by the Town for at least 1,000 hours during a

Plan Year, excluding employees wholly or partially subsidized by the Federal or State government directly or
indirectly.

The Plan's normal retirement requirements and pension benefits are as follows:

Normal Retirement Requirements:
Police and Fire - 20 years of service, or at age 62. For employees hired after 7/1/11, benefits can not
begin until the 23-year anniversary of membership in the plan.
Other Departments — the earliest of:
Age 60 and completion of 10 years of service;
Completion of 25 years of service with no age requirement.
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Town Plan) (continued)
Plan Description

Monthly Pension:
Police and Fire — 2.50% for every year up to 20 years, plus 2.50% for every year after 20 years to a max
of 70%.

Other Departments — 2.50% for every year up to 25 years, plus 2.50% for every year after 25 years.

Average Monthly Compensation:
Police — The averaging period is based on one year and includes longevity, holiday pay and wellness.
Fire — The averaging period is based on one year and includes longevity, holiday pay and wellness.
Other Departments — The averaging period is based on one year and includes longevity.

Normal Form of Benefit:
Pensions for all unions are increased by 2.25% for 15 years.

Pensions for Police and Fire are increased by 2% annually for ten years.

The Plan also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by terms of the Plan document.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Town of West Warwick PERS are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to each
plan are recognized when due and the employer has inade a formal commitment to provide the contributions.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the each plan.
Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value. Fair value is the amount that a plan can
reasonably expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller that
is, other than a forced liquidation sale. The fair value of fixed income and domestic and international stocks are
generally based on published market prices and quotations from national security exchanges and securities
pricing services. Real estate is primarily valued on appraisals by independent appraisers or as adjusted by the
general partner. Their respective fund manager values other securities and investments, which are not traded on
a national security exchange. Short-term investments are stated at fair value. Investments transactions are
recorded on a trade date basis. For valuation purposes an actuarial value of assets is calculated that smoothes
market fluctuations over a five year period.
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Town Plan) (continued)
Contributions and reserves

The Town Council has the authority to determine the Towns’ obligation to contribute to the plan. The funding
policy is based on the availability of Town assets. Plan administrative costs are paid from plan assets. Required
contribution rates by plan members are negotiated through labor contracts. There were no long-term contracts for
contributions to the plan or amounts outstanding as of the reporting date. There were no reserves or
designations.

Actuarial Cost Method

The job of the plan's pension actuary is to use a "cost method" to distribute the cost of the pension benefits over
each employee's working lifetime. The actuarial cost method can be thought of as a budgeting process that
allocates the cost of benefits to all years, both past and future. This is done through a series of actuarial
calculations:

1. The first step is to determine the plan's liability for the promised benefits. For employees, this
involves estimating the dollar value of benefits when employees reach retirement age, and estimating
how many employees will actually stay with the Town long enough to receive those benefits. Once
benefits start being paid, an estimate must be made as to how long the retiree will live and continue to
collect benefits. All of those future benefit payments are then stated in terms of today's dollars, and the end
result is termed Represent value of future benefits.

2. For current employees, a portion of those future benefits have already been earned, and the rest will be
earmed over their remaining working lifetime. The actuarial cost method divides the present value of future
benefits into three pieces: the accrued liability, which is the portion allocated to past years, the normal
cost, which is the piece allocated to the current year, and Represent value of future normal costs, which is
the piece allocated to future years.

3. For terminated employees and retirees, all benefits have already been earned, so the actuarial cost
method assigns the entire present value of future benefits to the accrued liability.

4. Once the liabilities have been determined, the next step is to look at the plan's assets. These are held in a
trust and are invested in a variety of stocks and bonds. Because of financial market conditions, the market
value of the plan's assets can be volatile.  The actuaries calculate an actuarial value of assets that
smoothes out this volatility so that the Town's contribution does not swing about as much as the stock’
market does. Beginning July 1, 2001, the actuarial value of assets is determined by first projecting the ~
actuarial value from the beginning of the prior fiscal year based on the actual cash flow during the fiscal
year and the assumed interest rate. The difference between this expected actuarial value and the actual
market value is recognized over a five year period, subject to the actuarial value remaining within + 15%
of the Market Value. For prior years, the actuarial value of assets was equal to the Market Value of Assets.
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Town Plan) (continued)

Plan Description (continued)

5. The plan's assets represent the accumulation of all contributions that have been made in past years.
Similarly, the plan's accrued liability represents the accumulation of all benefits that have been eamned in past
years. If the assets exceed the liabilities, the Town has in effect paid more than necessary in past years, and so
can pay less in future years. Likewise, if the assets are smaller than the liabilities, then the Town should
pay more in future years to make up the shortfall. The actuarial cost method factors this into the
contribution via the past service cost. First, we subtract the actuarial value of assets from the accrued
liability. The result is called the unfunded accrued liability. The unfunded accrued liability is then
amortized over a 26 year period (30 years starting with the July 1, 2000 valuation) to determine the past
service cost.

6. The Town's annual contribution is then calculated by adding together the normal cost and \the past service
cost. The annual contribution is divided by the current annual payroll to get a contribution rate. The
contribution rate should remain relatively stable over the years, unless there are unexpected changes in the
employee and retiree populations, unusual investment results, or changes in the benefit provisions.

Actuarial Assumptions

Inflation Rate: The plan assumes a rate of 3.00% - 3.50%.

Investment Returns: The plan assumes a return rate of 8.00%.

Projected Salary Increases: Projected salary increases are assumed at 3.5%.
Post Retirement Benefit Increases: N/A

Amortization method: Level Percent

Amortization Period: 25 Year (decreasing)

Valuation type: Closed Group

Concentrations
There are no investments in any one organization that represents more than 5% of the plan net assets.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation: Below are the required pension obligation presentations per
GASB 25 and 27 for the period ending June 30, 2012.

6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012
Annual required contribution $ 5,799,056 $ 6,912,110 $ 8,708,689
Interest on NPO obligation 2,107,084 2,412,899 2,821,844
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,699,296) (2,010,121) (2,423,622)
Annual NPO cost 6,206,844 7,314,888 9,106,911
Contributions made 2,500,000 1,289,098 1,100,592
Increase (decrease) in NPO obligation 3,706,844 6,025,790 8,006,319
Net NPO obligation beginning of year 25,540,416 29,247,260 35,273,050
Net NPO obligation end of year $ 29.247.260 $ 35,273,050 $ 43.279.369
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (Town Plan) (continued)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual

Year Ended Required Percentage Actual

June 30 Contribution Contributed NPO Contribution

2012 $8,708,689 12.60% $43,279,369 $1,100,592

2011 6,912,110 18.65% 35,273,050 1,289,098

2010 5,799,056 43.11% 29,247,260 2,500,000

2009 4,676,096 21.30% 25,540,416 1,000,000

2008 4,082,436 55.83% 21,458,620 2,279,340

2007 3,553,780 56.31% 19,256,290 2,001,206

Funded Status
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©)] (b-a)/c)

7/1/11 $34,278,146 $144,368,994  $110,090,848 23.70% $15,164,989 726.00%
7/1/10 35,007,723 133,014,168 98,006,445 26.32% 16,303,378 601.14%
7/1/09 35,588,039 119,658,016 84,069,977 29.74% 16,891,909 497.69%
7/1/08 44,536,601 112,769,635 68,233,034  39.49% 17,047,080 400.26%
7/1/07 43,413,194 100,619,756 57,206,562 43.10% 16,862,318 339.30%
7/1/06 41,254,601 91,322,808 50,068,207  45.17% 15,720,077 318.50%

NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town of West Warwick is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. As a result, the Town
participates in a non-profit, public entity risk pool (Rhode Island Inter-local Risk Management Trust, Inc.) that
provides coverage for property/liability claims and workers' compensation claims. Upon joining the Trust, the
Town signed a participation agreement that outlines the rights and responsibilities of both the Trust and the
Town. The agreement states that for premiums paid by the Town, the Trust will assume financial responsibility
for the Town's losses up to the maximum amount of insurance purchased, minus the Town's deductible amounts.
The policy is not retrospectively rated, but rather, premiums are based on the ultimate cost of the groups
experience to date. The pool is allowed to make additional assessments for claims that are reasonably possible
and estimable. ‘
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NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Trust provides this insurance coverage through a pooled, self-insurance mechanism, which includes
reinsurance purchased by the Trust to protect against large, catastrophic claims above the losses the Trust, retains
internally for payment from the pooled contributions of its Members. Under the participation agreement, the
Town is insured for a maximum of $5,000,000 per occurrence. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded the Trust coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. And it is not anticipated that the risks will
exceed the trust coverage in the current year. There were no reductions in the insurance coverage during the
fiscal year up and through the report date.

The town insures the entire risk arising from employee related health issues through the purchase of standard
health insurance policies for all employees. Policy costs are charged in full to insurance expense in the general,
special revenue and enterprise funds on a monthly basis. There are no retrospective adjustments to the monthly
premiums charged to the town. The carrier, in advance of the new policy year and to account for the town’s
historical costs, adjusts the premiums annually.

NOTE 18 - RELATED PARTIES

The Town reviews its records on an annual basis to determine if any related party transactions exist that would
represent a conflict of interest with parties related to its officers and department heads. No such transactions
were noted in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 26, 2013 the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. As a result of this review, only the Town and School settlement, which occurred in July
2012 and is noted in Financial Statement Note 13 & 14, is considered to be a material subsequent event
identified by Management.

NOTE 21 — STATE PLAN

The State of Rhode Island, in conjunction with the Town of West Warwick, have devised a Pension Fund
Funding Tmprovement Plan as of January 10, 2013. Currently, this plan calls for four strategies to increase the
Town funding to the existing Town Retirement plan. As of now, the funding plan is not in effect or being
followed, as per the Town Manager. We suggest a review of the plan to determine if it is feasible for the Town,
and subsequent action be taken if funding targets will not be met.
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Annual OPEB Funded Status and Net OPEB Obligation

Required Contributions

Fiscal Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage Actual
June 30 Contribution Contributed  Contribution
2012 $7,552,618 64.4% $4,865,794
2011 $7,529,803 56.2% $4,231,074
Funded Status
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
July 1, (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
2008 $0 $136,587,286  $136,587,286 0.0% N/A N/A
2010 $0 $85,956,352 $85,956,352 0.0% N/A N/A
2012 $0 $107,329,661  $107,329,661 0.0% N/A N/A
Annual NPO Funded Status and Net Pension Obligation
Required Contributions
Fiscal Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage Actual
June 30 Contribution Contributed NPO Contribution
2012 $8,708,689 12.60% $43,279,369 $1,100,592
2011 6,912,110 18.65% 35,273,050 1,289,098
2010 5,799,056 43.11% 29,247,260 2,500,000
2009 4,676,096 21.30% 25,540,416 1,000,000
2008 4,082,436 55.83% 21,458,620 2,279,340
2007 3,553,780 56.31% 19,256,290 2,001,206
Funded Status
Actuarial UAALasa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b (b-a) (a/b) () (b-a)/c)
7/1/11 $34278,146 $144,368,994  $110,090,848 23.70% $15,164,989 726.00%
7/1/10 35,007,723 133,014,168 98,006,445 26.32% 16,303,378 601.14%
7/1/09 35,588,039 119,658,016 84,069,977 29.74% 16,891,909 497.69%
7/1/08 44,536,601 112,769,635 68,233,034 39.49% 17,047,080 400.26%
7/1/07 43,413,194 100,619,756 57,206,562 43.10% 16,862,318 339.30%
7/1/06 41,254,601 91,322,808 50,068,207 45.17% 15,720,077 318.50%
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General property taxes
Real estate and personal property tax
Total general property taxes

Intergovernmental and departmental revenues
State of Rhode Island
Departmental

Total intergovernmental and departmental revenue

Licenses, permits and usage fees
Business fees
Non-business fees

Total licenses, permits and usage fees

Fines and interest on late payments
Interest on investments
Other revenues
Total revenues
Other financing sources
Transfer from municipal court
Transfer from other funds

Total other financing sources
Total revenue and other financing sources

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
Schedule of Revenues - (Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Revised
Budget Budget Actual
Revenues Revenues Revenues Variance
$ 51,822,101 $ 51,822,101 $ 52,351,196 $ 529,095
51,822,101 51,822,101 52,351,196 529,095
21,243,148 21,243,148 21,451,423 208,275
921,650 921,650 603,317 (318,333)
22,164,798 22,164,798 22,054,740 (110,058)
1,793,000 1,793,000 1,716,243 (76,757)
27,250 27,250 38,851 11,601
1,820,250 1,820,250 1,755,094 (65,156)
450,000 450,000 497,815 47,815
50,000 50,000 12,714 (37,286)
99,000 99,000 162,245 63,245
76,406,149 76,406,149 76,833,804 427,655
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
- - 184,615 184,615
10,000 10,000 194,615 184,615
$ 76,416,149 $ 76,416,149 $ 77,028,419 $ 612270
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Original Revised
Budgeted Budgeted Actual
Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Variance

Legislative, judicial and general administrative
Town Administrator

Salaries and wages $ 173,628 173,628 130,232 43,396

Office expense 8,500 8,500 5,088 3,412

Travel/training 3,000 3,000 2,936 64
Total Administrator 185,128 185,128 138,256 46,872
Town council

Salaries $ 21,000 21,000 $ 21,350 $ (350)

Fees and supplies 2,000 2,000 3,017 (1,017)

Contribution - non profit 8,000 8,000 9,000 (1,000)
Total council 31,000 31,000 33,367 (2,367)
Clerks and records

Salaries and wages 205,724 205,724 185,114 20,610

Office expense 19,000 19,000 20,969 (1,969)

Restoration of records 30,000 30,000 19,740 10,260
Total clerks 254,724 254,124 225,823 28,901
Board of Canvassers

Salaries and wages 50,851 50,851 42068 8,783

Supplies & expense 5,500 5,500 3,962 1,538

Election expenses 30,000 30,000 34,149 (4,149)
Total board of canvassers 86,351 86,351 80,179 6,172
Legal

Administration 125,000 125,000 148,766 (23,766)

Labor specialist 60,000 60,000 94,163 (34,163)

Claims paid 40,000 40,000 65,006 (25,006)

Probate 22,500 22,500 21,375 1,125
Total legal 247,500 247,500 329,310 (81,810)
Emergency Management Agency

Salaries and wages 7,500 7,500 7,625 (125) -

Supplies & expense 1,000 1,000 141 859
Total board of emergency management agency 8,500 8,500 7,766 734
Law Enforcement

Town sergeant 700 700 610 90
Total law enforcement 700 700 610 90
General Government

Pensions 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -

Employee benefits 6,284,502 6,284,502 6,393,561 (109,059)

Insurance 717,500 717,500 708,002 9,498

Unemployment 70,000 70,000 90,384 (20,384)

Services and utilities 159,411 159,411 224,507 (65,096)

Advertising 45,000 45,000 35,091 9,909

Computer services 70,000 70,000 76259 (6,259)
Total general government 8,346,413 8,346,413 8,527,804 (181,391)

(continued)
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Town Planner

Salaries and wages

Fees, supplies and postage
Total town planner

Total Legislative, judicial and general administrative

Financial Administration
Salaries and wages
IT Consultant
Fees, supplies and postage
Total financial administration

Audit of Accounts
Professional services
Total audit of accounts
Total for Financial Administration

Tax Collector

Salaries and wages

Fees and supplies

Advertising, postage and printing
Total Tax Collector

Tax Assessor
Salaries and wages
Fees and supplies
Professional services
Total Tax Assessor

Board of Assessment Review
Salaries and wages
Fees and supplies

Total Board of Assessment Review

Public Safety
Police Department
Salaries and wages

Police benefits overtime and sick leave

Insurance
Education
Supplies and services
Maintenance of police cars
Gas and tires

Total police department

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

(continued)
Original Revised
Budgeted Budgeted Actual
Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Variance
73,000 73,000 68,328 4,672
1,000 1,000 818 182
74,000 74,000 69,146 4,854
9,234 316 9,234316 9,412,261 (177,945)
236,858 236,858 238,106 (1,248)
38,000 38,000 38,000 -
12,250 12,250 6,753 5,497
287,108 287,108 282,859 4,249
24,000 24,000 21,080 2,920
24,000 24,000 21,080 2,920
311,108 311,108 303,939 7,169
161,525 161,525 165,552 (4,027)
16,315 16,315 14,726 1,589
11,529 11,529 12,173 (644)
189,369 189,369 192,451 (3,082)
120,531 120,531 124,407 (3,876)
7,300 7,300 6,558 742
24,160 24,160 74,080 (49,920)
151,991 151,991 205,045 (53,054)
1,660 1,660 1,574 86
200 200 158 42
1,860 1,860 1,732 128
3,993,878 3,993,878 3,789,799 204,079
780,800 780,800 876,554 (95,754)
23,600 23,600 20,800 2,800
20,000 20,000 45,124 (25,124)
231,200 231,200 219,665 11,535
60,000 60,000 73,731 (13,731)
90,000 90,000 111,858 (21,858)
5,199,478 5,199,478 5,137,531 61,947
(continued)
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Public Safety (continued)

Fire Department

Salaries and wages

Benefits overtime and sick leave

Education

Insurance

Supplies & expense

Clothing allowance

Fuel

Utilities

Hydrants

Maintenance

Ambulance

Alarm and radio
Total fire department
Total Public Safety

Public Works

Administration
Salaries and wages
Supplies and expense
Dumping fees
Fuel
Fleet maintenance
Maintenance

Total administration

Recycling
Salaries and wages
Supplies

Total recycling

Engineering
Salaries and wages
Supplies and fuel

Total engineering

Street Lighting
Electric
Total street lighting

Other Public Works
Zoning
Contracted Services
Total other public works

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

(continued)
Original Revised
Budgeted Budgeted Actual
Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Variance
4,385,364 4,304,334 4,289,953 14,381
879,739 1,069,519 1,121,584 (52,065)
25,000 25,000 25,000 -
26,000 26,000 28,800 (2,800)
76,333 76,333 106,432 (30,099)
108,750 - 2,000 (2,000)
54,000 54,000 73,454 (19,454)
23,000 23,000 25,288 (2,288)
375,101 375,101 370,085 5,016
58,950 58,950 80,059 (21,109)
33,000 33,000 36,000 (3,000)
20,000 20,000 22,760 (2,760)
6,065,237 6,065,237 6,181,415 (116,178)
11,264,715 11,264,715 11,318,946 (54,231)
1,399,686 1,399,686 1,182,043 217,643
297,000 - 297,000 164,729 132,271
400,000 400,000 342,639 57,361
105,000 105,000 116,276 (11,276)
182,000 182,000 138,585 43,415
195,000 195,000 131,417 63,583
2,578,686 2,578,686 2,075,689 502,997
198,960 198,960 174,428 24,532
10,000 10,000 1,660 8,340
208,960 208,960 176,088 32,872
15,000 15,000 44,743 (29,743)
3,000 3,000 6,258 (3,258)
18,000 18,000 51,001 (33,001)
385,000 385,000 357415 27,585
385,000 385,000 357415 27,585
5,300 5,300 3,811 1,489
708,735 708,735 649,060 59,675
714,035 714,035 652,871 61,164
(continued)

61



Public Works (continued)

Building Inspector
Salaries and wages
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies, heat and fuel
Other

Total building inspector

Total Public Works

Public Health and Welfare
Tenant affairs
Senior center

Total Public Health and Welfare

Library
Salaries and wages
Benefits overtime and sick leave
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies and utilities
Memberships

Total Library

Parks and Recreation
Salaries and wages
Supplies

Total Parks and Recreation

Capital Budget

Capitalized capital budget
Total Capital Budget
Total expenditures

Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Other bond cost

Total Debt Service

Other financing uses
Transfer to other funds

West Warwick school appropriation

Transfer to other funds
Total other financing uses

Total expenditures and other financing uses $

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

(continued)
Original Revised
Budgeted Budgeted Actual
Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Variance
198,017 198,017 197,688 329
70,400 70,400 77,250 (6,850)
72,800 72,800 79,426 (6,626)
1,600 1,600 2,240 (640)
342,817 342,817 356,604 (13,787)
4,247,498 4,247 498 3,669,668 577,830
1,800 1,800 1,840 (40)
140,000 140,000 140,000 -
141,800 141,800 141,840 (40)
365,563 365,563 365,563 -
55,498 55,498 80,749 (25,251)
153,497 153,497 128,247 25,250
28,606 28,606 28,605 1
28,836 28,836 28.836 -
632,000 632,000 632,000 -
144,644 144,644 174,072 (29,428)
78,640 78,640 82,599 (3,959
223284 223,284 256,671 (33,387)
242,926 242,926 140,863 102,063
242,926 242 926 140,863 102,063
26,640,867 26,640,867 26,275,416 365,451
1,605,000 1,605,000 1,605,000 -
1,028,560 1,028,560 1,022,888 5,672
17,500 17,500 18,659 (1,159)
2,651,060 2,651,060 2,646,547 4513
47,124,222 47,124,222 46,779,622 344,600
- - 238,670 (238,670)
47,124,222 47,124,222 47,018,292 105,930
76,416,149 § 76416,149 § 75,940,255 3 475,894
(concluded)
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2012

BUDGETARY - GAAP REPORTING RECONCILIATION

The accompanying Required Supplementary Information Statements of Revenues,

Expenditures/Expenses (GAAP or Non-GAAP Basis) presents comparisons of the legally adopted
budget (more fully described in Note 2) with actual data on a budgetary basis. Because
accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ -
significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with GAAP, a
reconciliation of resultant basis, entity and timing differences in the excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other sources of financial resources over expenditures/expenses and other uses of
financial resources for the year ended June 30, 2012 is presented below:

General Special
Fund Revenue
GAAP Basis GAAP
Budgetary Basis Revenues $76,833,804 $ 1,011,919
Adjustments.

To adjust for reclassification of School State Aid (18,287,715) 18,287,715

To adjust for State on behalf payments - 2,145,527
GAAP basis revenues 58,546,089 21,445,161
Budgetary Basis Expenditures 28,921,963 48,248,888
Adjustments:

To adjust for State on behalf payments - 2,145,527
GAAP basis expenditures 28,921,963 50,394,415
Budgetary Basis Transfers (46,823,677) 46,779,622
Adjustments.

To adjust for reclassification of School State Aid 18,287,715 (18,287,715)
GAAP basis transfers (28,535,962) 28,491,907
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures/expenses and other uses (Budgetary Non-GAAP _
basis) ) $ 1,088,164 $ (457347
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Revenues

General property tax $ 51,822,101 $ 51,822,101 $ 52,351,196 $ 529,095

Intergovernmental and departmental revenue 22,164,798 22,164,798 22,054,740 (110,058)

License and permits 1,820,250 1,820,250 1,755,094 (65,156)

Fines and interest on late payments 450,000 450,000 497815 47,815

Interest on investments 50,000 50,000 12,714 (37,286)

Other revenue 99,000 99,000 162,245 63,245
Total Revenues 76,406,149 76,406,149 76,833,804 427,655
Expenditures

Legislative, judicial, and general administrative 9,234,316 9,234,316 9,412,261 (177,945)
Financial administration, tax collection and assessment 654,328 654,328 703,167 (48,839)

Public safety 11,264,715 11,264,715 11,318,946 (54,231)

Public works 4,247,498 4,247,498 3,669,668 577,830

Public health & welfare 141,800 141,800 141,840 (40)
Parks and recreation 223,284 223,284 256,671 (33,387)
Library 632,000 632,000 632,000 -

Capital budget 242,926 242,926 140,863 102,063
Debt service:

Principal 1,605,000 1,605,000 1,605,000 -

Interest 1,028,560 1,028,560 1,022,888 5,672

Other 17,500 17,500 18,659 (1,159)
Total expenditures 29,291,927 29,291,927 28,921,963 369,964
Excess of revenues over expenditures
before operating transfers 47,114,222 47,114,222 47,911,841 797,619
Other financing sources and (uses)

Operating transfers from other funds 10,000 10,000 194,615 184,615

Operating transfers to other funds (47,124,222) (47,124,222) (47,018,292) 105,930
Total operating transfers (47,114,222) (47,114,222) (46,823,677) 290,545
Excess of revenues over

expenditures and operating transfers $ - 3 - $ 1,088,164 $ 1,088,164

66




L9

(Lye'Lsy) § UpELSh) § - $ - $ $9210N0S 19Y)0 pUE S3AMIpuadxd (19pun) 1340
$32.N0S .I3Y}0 pUB SINUIAIL SSIIXHY
(009°+€) TTI6LL9Y TTTYCLLY TeTYTl'Ly $30.1n08 FurpuLUY I9Y}0 [BIO],
(009°%¥€) TTI'6LL OV TTTYCILY TTTYI'LY SpUrY IOYJ0 WOY SIOJSueI],
$321n0s 3uueUl YO
Lz (696°9€T°LY) (TzTyer'Ly) (CzTvT1'Ly) §90.1n0S SuULUL I9Y)0 310J3q
S2In)puadxa (JOpuUN) I9A0 SINUIAII JO §SIIXT
(999%09) 883877 8% TTTYY9' LY TTTHY9'LY saamIpuddxa [ejo,
(999%09) 8888+ 8% TCTYY9'LY TTTHY9'LY Supeiedp
saanypuadxy
61616V 6161101 000°0TS 000°0ZS ONUIAJI [BJO
LSY°€6 LSY'E91 000°0L 000°0L Yo
LSST LSST - - SJUSUIISDAUL UO 1S2IDIU]
S06°s6¢  $ S06s¥8  $ 000‘0sy  $ 000°0S¥  § ONULARI [EIUSUIUIOA0TIOIU]
SINUIANY
UBLIBA [enpPy 198png 108png

PasIady [ewsLIQ

TI0T ‘0€ dunp papuy Ied X [2asI] 9} 104
S2IM)Ipuddxy pue SONUIAY JO SMPIYIS
puny pajaLIISaIU) [00YdS - I[NPIYIS uosiiedwo)) Aieyadpng
STOOHDS DI'TdNd IIDIMIAVM LSIM
NOILVIARIOANI AYVINANATAANS



89

YO VLLT $ 118°6v1 $ 678°99€°T § 86°LSTT '$ SoouE[Bq pUnj pue SANI[IqeI] [BJO],
£68°7S9°1 691°6¢€1 Y06°TEL 0Z8°08L S3dUR[eq puny [B)0],
691°6¢1 691°6€1 - - spuny syosfoad [eyde)
YTLICIS T - Y06°TEL 078°08L Spuny ANUALI [e193dg

UL papodal PajoLnsay
(S)121J9p) sddue[eq puny

6vLTT11 901 SP6°€E9 OTLLY SonINqEl] [E10L

LOV'8TH - 0Zv19€ LV0'L9 $90UB[RQ [BUISU]

78T°€69 $ w901 $ sTSTUT $ SIT0lY  § sasuadxa paniooe pue sjqeded sjuNoody
sonqery

SHONVIVE ANOA ANV STLLI'TIIvIT

WOVLL'T $ L18°6v1 § 6¥8°99€°1 § 786°LST'T § §)assB 1810 ],
8GT°8CI‘T TI8%6¥1 1vT8€e 901°019 Seoue[eq TeuIu]
SETY69 - €19°159 Tty SIUSUIULIDAOS JOTJ0 WO an(]
6vTTS6 $ - $ $66°9LE  § rsTisLs  § sjus[eAINba yseo pue yse)
SLASSV
spungq spungj spuny spunj
[E)UAWUIIACL) y9loag ANUIAY ANUIAY
J0[BIA-UON rende) [eradg [eradg
e0], [001d§ umoj,
T10T ‘o€ oung

SpUn,{ [2)USUINIIA0Y) A0[BJAI-UON - 190YS ddue[eg Suruiquio))
ANVIST AAOHY MDIMUVM LSAM A0 NMAOL
NOILVINHOANI AYVINANATILNS



69

£68°759°1 691°651  § YO6°TEL  $ 078°08L $ 10T ‘0€ dunp pajoLsal - YaPp) sadug[eq puny
880°910°C £70°601 901°56¢ 6£6°110°T L10Z ‘T A PajdLnsal - (JYIp) sddue[eq punyg
(561°€9€) (L8°697) 86L°LE] (611°1€0) ‘ saduUE[Rq puny ur d3ueYd JON
SSO'vS - - [S828 (s9sn) s92an0s FupUBUL I3Y)0 [¥10],
(8€0°891) (8£07891) - - SPUIY 19Y}0 0} SI3JSUBL],
£60°CTT 8£0°891 - SSOpS SpUMy ISY}0 WO SIQJSUBL],
(sosn) s3danos Supueuly 19410
(0ST°L1Y) (,8°697) 86L°LEL (PL1°587) (s9sn) $301N0s SuPUBUY JAYI0 310J3q SAINJPUIdXd
(19pun) J9A0 SINUIAJI JO (AQUIIIJIP) SSIIXHY
STOLTOS ¥18°69T LEREIR’S PI6°€E6'T saIm)Ipuadxa [eyo],
SYYTI09 809°861 LE] EIR'S - uorponpy
99Z°1L 99T 1L - - [endeD
£L0O°€TS - - £L0°€T8 SIBJ[O M Pue ol 1qud
TILT6T - - TILT6T syIoMm of[qnd
6T1°818 - - 6T1°818 Ayayes a1pqug
sa.njpuadxyy
SLED09 L - SE9'TS6S 0vL8¥9°T SONUIA [€J0],
G8/°881°T - T6¥°STS 6T €LY SNUAASL IO
74 - - v muﬁvﬁbmo\wﬁ._ uo mwuﬁbwm
985°T1H°9 - $ AT A wr'sLe  $ SNUSASI [BIUSUILIDAOSIoU]
SONUIANY
spung spung spung spung
[BIUIWULIIA0Y) 19loag ANUIAY ANUIARY
JIofep-uoN rende) [eadsg [eradg
[el0], [ooyos UMO],

TI0T “0€ dunp papuy 1es X [8ISL] 3Y) 104
spuny [EIUAWUIIAGY) J0[RA[-UON - ddUE[eq punq Ui soduey)
pue soumpuddXy ‘sonudAdy Jo JusuIole)S Juiuiquo))
ANVIST ZAOHY DIMAVM LSAM A0 NMOL
NOILVINHOANI AUV.INTNATdLNS



(panupuod)

0L

6001

(szE'e) |

6001

(szee)

6001

STEE

11€7T
¥10°1

6001

6001

LA
aduafjey)y
sutuue|J

punj
Adruy

punyg
Axapaura)y
IUIIIN)

$ 1011 $
101°1
101°1
$ - $
$ 101°T $
$ 101°T $
pung uysneA
Aasary e |
AUy urueluag

2107 ‘o€ dunp
UAMO ], - SPUN ] ANUIANY [e10adg

NOLLVINYOAINI AMVINHNHATIIAS

39))1IUI0))
[EIUT)UIDILI ],

SpUN] [EIUIUIUIIA0L) Jo[eJA-UON - }IITS Joue[eqg Jururquio))
ANVIST AOHY MDIMUVAM 1STIM A0 NMOL

SIIUE[E] punj pue sAPIIqeI] [ero],
(sy1o1ap) saoueeq puny [ejo,

Pa)OLIISI - s90uUR[Rq pun,j
(Saayap) svdueeq punyg

SPUIqEI ¥
sooueRq [RWSU]
$9suadxa PanIooe pue ajqeied sUNOOIY
sapIqery
SAONVIVE ANNA ANV STLLITIIVI'T

§)ISSE [B)O I
sooup[Eq TRIISIU]
S)UQUILISA0T I9Y)0 WOy an(]
4sed

SLASSV



1L

(panunuod)

- $ - $ 00¥ € $ - $ 88911
(Ths71L) - - - €0TH1
(TS0 - - - €0TY1

WS 1L - 00 € - 14

0LS Y9 - - - -

TL6™9 $ - $ 00¥%°C $ - $ S8y

- $ - $ 00v'¢ $ - $ 88971

- - 0ov € - ’ 990°CT

- - - - 79T

- $ - $ - $ - $ -

puuyg 6007 OVI 800T OVI RN | AIPLL puuygy
HeMRARY jueas) u-—bm jueI) uﬁrm [UIREEP: | vu:oA,— g
ovr Aduerg
(ponunuod)

TI0T ‘0g dunyp
UMOJ, - SPUn,f INUWIANY [e139dg
Spunj [e)UIWUIIA0L) J0[BA-UON - 139Y§ Jdue[eq Suruiquio))
ANVIST HGOBY IDIAMAVA ISTM A0 NAOL
NOLLVIAMOANI AYV.INANATIINS

SIduE[Eq puUny pue SINIIGeEI] [E)0L,
(s1oyap) saoue[eq puuy [E10],

Pa190L1)$al - S30UR[Rq pUN,|
(S1101J9p) seoueeq punyg

SINIIQEI] [¥)0 L
$a0UR[Rq [RLIAU|
sasuadxo panidoe pue ojqeied sJUNOOIY
sanIqery
SAONVTIVE ANOJ ANV SHILI'TIEVIT

$)3SSE [B10 ],
Sa0UB[Rq [BUISIU]
SUSUILISAOT 15110 WO an(]
qgsen
SLASSV



L

(ponunguod)
- 19€ ¥y $ 698 61 $ - $ - $ N
- 1208y $98°61 (0s0°e) - (73]
- 120°8Ty $98°GT (0s07¢) - (/73
T 0ve91 - 050°¢ - LL
- 68 - - - LL
- 157°91 $ - $ 0s0°¢ $ - $ -
- 19€ ¥ry $ S98°61 $ - $ - $ -
- 906’y - - - -
- SSH6Ey $ $98°¢1 $ - $ - $ -
800¢ sjuer puny utoy ove vaav uonEIIINY
ALMPRg Axerqry BurAjoAdy oVl Joedg wadQ
pueRWoly Jusmdo[aAd
IMUOUWOIY
(panuyuod)

7107 ‘0g dunp
UMOT, - Spun, INUIANY [e1adg
SpuUny [¢JUIMUIIA0Y) JI0[BA-uoN - 139Y§ Joue|eg Suruiquio))
ANVISI JAOHY YIDIMAVA ISTA A0 NMOL
NOILLVIAMOANI AYVINHWA'TddNS

Sadue[eq punj pue saNI[IqeI] [¥)0],
(s1101y9p) s3sueqeq puny [ejo,

Pa1oLISal - sa0uR[Rq pUnyg
(s1013p) sadue[eq pun,y

mu_::a«: [L2LN
SooUR[Rq [RUISIUY
$9suadxa panIooe pue a[qeied sjuNoVYy
sapMIqery
SHONVIVE ANNA ANV STILITIIVI'T

S)355¢€ [€10],
So0UB[Eq BUIOTU]
SJUQUIUIOA0T ISYI0 WOIY an(]
used

SLASSV



(panunuod)

€L

$ - $ ; $ - $ .

$ - $ - $ - $ -

$ 5 $ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ - $ -
REIVENERT weI50.1J AT uoneneAy SINYILYAI
0) JIUE)PSISSY PsIq Jo smep 9 ISIIXY 0) IUR)SISSY

110¢ Ue3) £35es PUB[PWOL] RIS
[eLapayg Aemy3ryg
(panuyuol)

Z10T ‘o€ dung
UMO], - Spun,f INUIAIY [e13dg
spun [¢)UINIWIIA0L) 10[eA-UON] - )39y Iue[eq SuTUIquIo))
ANVISI JAOHT DIMAVAL ISTA 10 NMOL
NOILVINYOANI AdVINAWNAIddNS

$99Uk[Eq PUN] PUE SIVIIQEN [e)0],
(s19gep) saour[eq punj [e10],

PoIOIISal - SaouEeq pung
(s1199p) saoueeq puny

SODIIIQEY [B)0,
Sadue[eq [PUIIUY
sosuadxe PonIooR pue ojqeded SjUNOOdY
sapIqery
SIONVIVE AN ANV SALLITIIVI'Y

§)3sSE [BJO].
S00UE[Eq [RWRIUT
SJUSWUIPA0S 1010 WO an(]
useD)

SLASSY



(panunuod)

YL

LT6T1 €01 1LT 6SY P9 L88101
LT6°CI SLL6ST 6519 (€ST7151)
LT6TT SLL'6ST 65719 (€ST171ST)
- 8Tt 1] - 0b0°€EST
- 8TETI - 0v0'€EST
LT6C1 €00 TLT 65199 L88101
- €0 1LT 6579 L8819
- - - 000°0%
LT6TL - - -
punyg pung QWA S L jueas) Nyoig Eﬂhnchnm
TIAVA FuIA[oAY VIAHAA judwdopraqg s
Aunuwo)) ued[)
A2:t:\4
(panunuod)
TI0T ‘o€ dunp

UMOJ, - SPUN] INUIANY [e1aadg
SpuUn [EJULUIIIIA0K) Jo[eA-UON -139Yg doueeq Suruiquio))
ANVIST AAOHY DIATVA 1STM A0 NMOL
NOLLVINHOANI AYVINTNATdANS

S3duE[eq punj pue sANIIqeI] [¥I0 L
(spoyap) saoueeq punj [e1o],

Pa101118a1 - ssoue[eq punyg
(s)1y9p) saduereq punj

sanIIqel| [eI0 ],
$30URTRq [RUIAU]
$95uodX5 porIoor pue 9]qeARd SIUNOIOY
sapIIqery
SHONVIVH AN NV SHLLITIIVI'T

§335S% [€10 ],
$9JUE[Rq [RUIU]
SJUSUILIGA0T 19410 WOLT an(]
4sed

SLASSY



(papnpauod)

TLYSST1 $
SE0T8L

0T8°08L

LEBELY
_bLoel¥

LY0L9
SIT01Y

= ot

TLR'SSTT
901°0%9

9Ty

$STSLS $

S[el0y,

SL

8LL'S $ TSS°SLT $ [43 894
8LL'S LL6 091 S8 Sy
8LLS LL6091 43374
- SLS YT -
- $ SLSHTT $ -
8LL'S $ 7SS SLT $ 758t
8LL'S SS9°0LT TS8°St
- $ L68FO01 $ -
1e0) 1¥}5U0;]) puny
nenq SUTA[0AY
ERITOR ¢ JLIEN {
IIMO],
(panunuod)

T10T ‘0g dunp
uMo ], - Spunyf InuaAdy [erdg

Spun, [EJUWUIIA0L) J0[EA-UON] - }39YS sdue[eg Suruiquro))

ANVIST HTOHY ADIMIVA LSAM A0 NMOL
NOILVIWHOANI ATVINANATIINS

SIduE|eq punj pue saNIIGEI] B0,
(SI1J9p) $IdueRq puuy [B)0 ],

PoIoLIsal - saduR[Rq punj
(s3P1yIp) sdauefeq punyg

SINIIIqEI] [e}o],
$30UR[Rq [RUIAIU]
sasuadxa panode pue 9jqeAed SUNO2IY
. sanIqery
SHONVIVHE ANNA ANV STLLITIEVI'T

S)ISSE [€)0 ],
S9OUB[Eq TRUIAIU]
SJUWITIOADST 1OYJ0 WOTJ aNn(]
yse)

SLASSY



9L

(panunuod)
(sze'e) $ - - - $ 101°1 $ 6001 $
- (S1L°91) - - 660°1 L0O'T
(sTee) STL9T - - [4 7
- SIL91 - - - -
- SIL91 - - - -
(sze'e) - - - T T
10Ty - 00¢ L6L'8 - -
- - 00¢ L6L'8 ] - -
10Z°z¥ - - - - -
9L8°8¢ - 00¢ L6L8 4 [4
- - 00¢ L6L'8 - -
- - - - [4 [4
9L8°8¢ $ - - - $ - $ - $
JuRLs) punj puny puny uydneA ANPIWWO))
EX1E) | 1d1]e) Aduy Arrouwn) AJSAFT A [BTUUINAILAY,
Buiuuely ELCER 1) ruuy urmeluwag

TI0T ‘O£ dunp papuy Ae3 X [6IsLY 343 104
UMO], - SpunJ ANUIANY [eradg
SPUN,] [BIUIUITIIA0L) J0feA-UON - ddue[eg punq ul ss5usy))
pue saImIpuadxy ‘sanNnIAIY Jo Judurdjvlg Suruiquio))
ANVTIST HAOHYA SIDIAMAVM LSIM 40 NMOL
NOILLVIARMOANI AYVINHNA TddNS

TI0T 0€ dUnp pIjdLISIL - (JI1IP) sadue[eq pung

TT0T ‘T A P3jdLsal - (JIYIp) saanejeq punyg
SIS L3I0 pue SIINJPUIAXI (Japun) 1340

$32.IM0S JII0 PUE SINUIAII JO (AJUINIPIP) $SIIXY

(sasn) s32ano0s InPULULY JIYI0 [B10],
Spury Iayio woly (03) sisjsuer) SuneradQ
(s3sn) sadanos Fupueuy LBYIO

(s9sm) s30aM0s FUNDUEBULY JITI0 3.10J9q SAIMIPUIAXI
(13pun) I9A0 SINUIAII JO (AIUIDIJIP) SSIIXY

SINpuAdxa (830,
SIBJ[9 A PUE i[eoH S1qnd
S3Iom oljqng
Kiages orqng
sdanIpuadxy

SANUIAII [BIO],
9NUAAST IYIO)
SJUSUNSAAUT U0 STurIey
9NUSASI [EJUSUIULIDA0TISIUT
SINUIARY



LL

(panunuod)

(Zys1L) $ - - $ - $ - $ £0Zy1
000°ST - (E1Y) - 9rL°L LS98

(zys 98) - PET Y - OrL’L) 95°¢
- - VET T - LovL0) -

- - YET Yy - OrLL) -

(2¥5°98) - - - - 9¥$°s
767°¢6 SEL8 - 00¥°¢ - ’ L169T
26T°¢6 - - - - -

- [SYA - 00t°€ - L16°9C
0SL°9 SEL8 - 00¥°€ - €95
0SL'9 $ SELg - $ 00t°¢ $ - $ £9%°C¢
pung 6007 OVI 8007 OVI 133g AdNLL puny
H[BAIIANY jueas) yuiag juean) surlg 0) INJ ERII% | mng
ovr Aopueag
(panunuod)

10T ‘0€ dung papuy Je3x [BISLY Y Jog
UMOJ, - SPUN,] AMUIANY [e1adg
Spuny [BJUIUIUIIA0L) J0{EJA-UON] ~ JduL[eq puny ui sIZuey))
pue s3ampuadxy ‘SonuaAdYy Jo JUINI LIS FulIquUIo’)
ANVISI HGOHY MDIMUVAL ISAA A0 NAAOL
NOILVINYOANI AYVINFNATIANS

T10Z “0€ dung pajarysat - ()Yap) saduejeq pung

T10T ‘T A PajaLuIsal - (J12Y9Pp) sadue[eq punyg
5IS0 13430 pue sIUANUpuIdXa (AIpun) 1340

$32IN0S 19Y)0 PUE SINNIAIIL JO (AQUADJIP) SSIIXF

(S9sn) $32.1n0Ss JUIDUBULY IIT)0 [€JO],
spuny Iayo wog (03) swysuer Funered
(sasn) s32an0s Jurdueuy YO

(sasn) $32unos Furdueur) JIY)0 310J3q sAIM)Ipuadxd
(12pun) 1240 SINUIAL JO (A0UIYIP) SSIXH

$2.m)Ipuadxs [ero],

oIeJjoM PUE YI[ESH ONqnd

sNIom orqnd
Ayages orqng
saamyrpuadxyy

SINUIAM [EIO],
SNUSARI IOYI)

SJUSUIISAUT U0 sFuruiey
SNUIASI [BJUSUILISA0FISNU]

SINWIAIY



8L

(panunjuod)
- $ 120°8Tr $98°51 $ {osoe) $ - $ (73] $ TI0T “0€ 2UNL PIRLYSIT - (JYIP) sdUE[Eq pung
L6V'9 TLT'88¢E $98°SI - (S6£77¢) (£91°1€) TTOT T AINL pIIdLYSAI - (JIIYIP) sadup[eq pun g
(L6¥°9) 6¥L 68 - (050°¢) S6£TE 980°T¢ SISTL I3Y)0 PUE SIIMIPUIAXI (1IpUN) 1340
$32.IN0S I31)0 PUE SINUIAIL Jo (AdUIIOYIP) §§IIXY
- - - 669°S ¥78°¢¢ - (sasn) $32.1M0s IUIIUBULJ JIY}O0 [BJ0O],
- - - 669°C 433 - spury Joypo woy (01) s1efsuen Jupelad
(sasn) s32an0s Furdueuly I3y
(L6¥°9) 6¥L6¢E - (6vL°8) (6Tv'D) 980°1¢ (sasn) 5301108 FudURUY IIYI0 II0JI] SIANYPuUIdXd
(19pUN) J3A0 SINUIAII JO (AOUIDTJIP) SSIIXT
106°LS YETIIT - 6¥L'8 ¥LY'SY 6811 SAIIPUaAx3 (B30 ],
- VETTIT - - - w8yl SIBJ[9 M\ PUB Yi[eaH dljqnd
- - - - - - SyIoM OT[qnd
106°LS - - 6vL°8 PLY'SY - Ayoyes omqng
saanypuadxyy
UA £86°05T - - SYTyY 8L6°SY SINUIAL [B30],
- SETLL " - - 00521 9NUAI IO
- - - - - - SJUSUIISOAUT U STurure
POV IS $ 8PLELT - $ - $ YTy $ 8LYEE $ 9MUALI [RIUGUIUIIAOTIAIU]
SINUIANYY
8007 syue.rn punj agoy ove A4:t:A 4 uoneINIY
Ay Areaqry SUIA[OARY [9)\% edg wadQ
puvpPwWoy ymawd oA
ITUWOU0IF

(panunuod)
T10T ‘0g dunp papuy 183X [8ISI] 3Y) 104
UAO], - SPUN ] ANUIANRY [erdadg
SpuU [B)UIWILIIACY) d0leJA-uoN - due[eqg punyg ur so3uey)
pue s3IMIpuIdXy ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIWI) IS SUTUIGUIO))
ANVTISI IAOHT IDIMAVA ISTM 40 NAAOL
NOILLVINMOANI AYVINIAWIA1AdNS



(panunuod)

oL

- - - $ - $ - $
- - (STSTTD) 6LL9 (L8T'%)
- - SISTI (6LL9) L8TY
- (6989L1) - - -
- (698°9LT) - - -
- 698°9L1 SISTI (6LL°9) L8TY
000781 - - 6LL9 -
000°81 - - 6LL9 -
00081 698 9L SISTIL - LTV
000°81 698°9L1 SISTI $ - $ L8TY $
BETEITERNR] WEIB0X] Egi UONEN[BAT] SI9)YSIL]
0] UE)SISSY PsIqQ Jo smep 2 ISTIIIXY 0] UE)SISS Y
1107 ued]) Kyoyeg puspuoy e
[eaapaq AeMy3ig
(panunuod)

TT0T ‘0€ dunp papuf 183 X [edsLy 3y} 10
WAO T, - SPUN] INUIAY [e1aadg
spun,] [EIUIWUIIA0L) J0[BJA-UON] - du e[y punj ur saduey)
pue saunIpuadxy ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIWI) L) Suruiquo))
ANVISI JAOHY SIDIMA VA LSIM 10 NAO.L
NOLLVINHOANI AMVINHNATdANS

TI0T ‘0€ dunp p3jaLIsaa - (JIY3Pp) sadue[eq puny

TT0T ‘T AIng pajorysas - (J1oyap) saouepeq puny
S9SN 13710 pue sIINIpuadxd (Jdpun) JIA0

$32.1N0S I1[)0 PUE SINUIAII JO (ADUIIIP) SSIIXT

($9sn) $92an0s FurdUBUY JIY)O0 [¥I0],
spuny 19110 woy (03) s1o5suen Funeied)
(s9sn) sadanos Furdueury 12YI0

(s9sn) 321008 FurduURUY L3I0 3I10JI] SIINYPPuUIdXd
(19pun) JIA0 SINUIAIL JO (AIUITIJIP) $SIIX

SIIMIpuadxa [ejo],
SIBJ[9M PUB YIESH Olqnd
S310M OTIqNd
Ayages orjqng
saamrpuddxy

SINUIAI [¥IO],
ANUIAL IO
SJUSUISOATT UO STurtIBy
ONUOAI [BJUSWIAA0TI0JU]
SINUWIAIY



(panupuod)

08

LT6T1 SLL6ST $ 65719 $ (eSTIS) $ -
08¢l €L8LYT - €19°L01 -
(SL8) T06°11 65%%9 (99L7857) -
- - - - 86T 8L1
- - - - 86T 8L1
(5L8) 0611 65¥'%9 (99L°857) (86T°8L1)
69T°L 098°0v¥ 08L°C1 99L° €6y TEL°LET
- - - 99L7¢6Y ] -
- - 08LC1 - TEL°LET
69T°L 098°0t+ - - -
¥6€9 T9L°TSY 6€TLL 000°SET CEV 65
¥6€9 T9L°TSY - - -
- - $ 6€TLL $ 000°S€T $ £Ev6S
m:-:_ww ﬁ::.m duay mh. uﬁ&&w Hao1g E&&Mo&nﬁ
TIvVd SUIA[OAY VINAAL JmwdopAdq [Ps3Iq
Arunwwo’) uead)
Vv
(panunuod)

T10T ‘0€ dung papuy I¥3 A [BISL] Y} 10

WMO ], - SPUN,] INUIANY [e1adg

SpunN [BJUIUITIIACL) J0[BJA-UON] - Jdug[eg puny ur safusy))
puE SIIMIPUIAX] ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIUINB)G SUTUIGUIO])
ANVISI HAOHA MDIMAVAL LSTM A0 NAMOL
NOILVINHOANI AYVINHNA1ddAS

TI0T ‘0€ dung PajaLsal - (JrLap) saduejeq punyg

I10T ‘T AIng pajoLusal - (JI21Jap) sadue[eq puny
$3sn J131)0 pue saun)rpuadxa (Jopuu) 1940

$32UM0S JIY)0 PUE SAINNIAI JO (AIUIIIJIP) SSIIXF

(s3sn) $32an0s Surousuly J3Y)0 [BI0 T,
Spuny 1ay10 woy (03) sigysuey) SuneiadQ
(sasn) $32.1n0s FuduEUY PYIQ

(s9sn) $33.1N0s BUIINLUWY JIY)0 3I10J3q SIIMIPUIAXd
(13pun) JIA0 SINUIAJI JO (AINIYIP) $SIIXY

saanypuadxa [¥10],
SIej[o M\ PUe [i[eaH dfqnd
SyI0M 01[qnJ
Kjoges orqnd
saanypuadxy

SIANUIAIL [B)O ],
ONUGAII IY)()
SJUSWISAAUT U0 sFururey
ONUOASI [BIUSLUULIDA0TISTU]
SINNIAY



I8

(papnouod)
078°08L $ 8LLS $ LL6'09] $ 58Sy $ TI0T ‘0€ Ny PAJOLISIT - (JIIYIP) SIDUE[EG puny
6£6°110°1 - Y67 1T 79 9v TT0T ‘T AInp pAILOsaI - (J124ap) saduefeq puny
(611°1€D) 8LL'S (L1E%8) (T6L) SIS 12Y)0 PUE SAIMIPUIAX3 (1Ipun) JA0
§92.IN0S 1370 PUE SINUIAIIL JO (AIUIIOYIP) SSRXY
SSOvs - - - (S9sn) $32.1N0S§ FUTOUBUY I3Y)0 [BIO],
SRS - - - Spuny 19y10 woly (03) s1s9ysuen) Funerad)
(sasn) s32anos JuuLUly JIYIO
(PL1°687) 8LL'S (L1EV8) (z6L) (sasn) §92.1n0§ JUPUEUY T9Y)0 310J3q SIIIIPUIAXI
(J3pun) J9A0 SINUIAAI JO (KIUIDJIP) SSIIXY
P16 €61 - S8 6l 6L SaIMpuIdxs [0 ],
LA N S
£LOETS - - 6L AIBJ[O M\ PUE UJ[BSH oNqnd
TILT6T - - - s3j10Mm olqng
6T1°818 - SP8E6l - Ayages orqng
sainyrpuadxy
OvL 8¥9'1 8LL'S 875601 - SINUAAAL [B)O ],
POT ELY 8LL'S 8T5 601 - ANUAJL IYIQ
14 - - - SJUDUNSIAUT UO Sulueq
wWwrSL6 $ - BN - $ - $ IMUIAI [RIUIUIIAOT IJU]
SINUIAIY
%10, 18D 1BJSU0)) punyg
nmeRq FurAjoANy
0 g FLEY S
MO,

(panunuod)
TI0T ‘0€ duUnp PIPUF B3 X [BISLY Y} J04.
UMO]J, - SPUny INUIARY [erdddg
Spun,j [B)UIWUIIA0Y) JofRIA-Uuo)N] - oue[eg pun, uI sasguey))
pue saIMIPuIdXT ‘SINUIAIY Jo JUIUIANB)S Suruiquio))
ANVISI ZAOHA DIMUVM LSAM 10 NMAOL
NOLLVINMOANI AYVINTFWA1ddNS



8

(ponunuod)
- $ $78°501 - $ - $ €701 $ 0198 $ 078°€LTS
- $T8°501 - - €20°1 019°8 0TS ELT
- 90T"LY - - €20°1 019°8 S8LSHT
- $ 61978S - S - $ - S - $ Se0'8T §
: $ $T8°501 - $ - $ €20°1 $ 0198 $ 0T8'ELT §
- cT8°c01 - - €70°1 019°8 0T78°¢LT
-8 - - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
19DLL 1°P1L 619 U0N3S q Med SPPOIN 619 UonddS qa Med
VIV [00yds31g vaal sAleIOqE[[0D  [00YISAI] vaal
Vv vVaav sunear)
T10T ‘o€ dunp

PaJOLINSIY [00YIS - SPUN] anudAY [epadg

SpUN,] [BJUSUITLIIA0L) I0[RIA[-UON - 123YS dduEjeg SuUrUIquio)

STOOHDS JOI'TdNd MDIAAUYVM LSTA
NOILVINMOANI AYVINANATIANS

SHONVIVYE ANNA ANV SHLLITIIVIT TVLOL
PSIOLSAI - S3OUB[RQ PUN,]

sanIqel (0L
S00UB[Rq [BUIU]
sasuadxo penrode pue s[qeded spunoay
saniqery
SHONVIVYH ANNA ANV SHILI'TIGVI'T

SLASSV TVLOL
SJUSUIILISAOD) 9)€)S PUB [BISPS,] WOX an(]
seouE[Rq [BUIIU]
yse)

SLASSY



€8

(ponunuod)
918§ - $ - $ - $ - $ 809°tL § LIE9Y §
918°¢ - - - - 809°¢L LIE9Y
0LLT - - - - 0T8'¥S LIE9Y
oorT § - $ - $ - $ - $ 88L8L § -
918°c  $ . $ - $ - $ - $ 809°CL  $ LIE9Y §
918°¢ - - - - 809°€L L1E9Y
- § - § - I $ - § -
I °BLL wrnipIosuo))  Win[Iosuo)) WNIIOSuo0))  WNIIOSuo))  WNII0oSuo)) I epLL
Suruted , SuiureaJ, Supurea g, Sururea J, SurureaJ,
(AN (AN €LTd [ANA] €LTH
AZ:t: A4 AZ:t: A4 A4 t: A4
(panunuod)
7107 ‘0g ounp

PI12LIISIY [001]IS - SPUN dNUIAIY [e1deds

Spuny [BJUdWIILIIA0Y) I0[BIA[-UON - }39Y§ ddue[eg SuTuIqUIo)

STOOHIS DI'TdNd ADIMUVA LSIM
NOILLVIARIOQANT AMVINIIWATddNS

SHONVIVH ANNA ANV SHILITIEVIT TVLOL
Pa1ALIISAY - sodue[ey pung

sanIjiqel| [e30,L
SeoUR[Rq [BULIU]
sosuadxo pomuooe pue o[qesed sjunoooy
saniqery
SHONVIVE ANOA ANV SHILI'TIEVIT

SLASSY 1VLOL
SJUSUILIDAOL) 91B)S PUE [BIOPa,] WO an(]
$O0UR[R( [EUISU]
yseD

SLUSSY



¥8

(panunuod)
- $ vie'ic ¢ - $ - $ 901°C 99.'8  § £00°0C $
- YIE1T - - 901°C 99L°8 £00°0¢
- ¥YIE1C - - 901°C 99.°8 £00°07
- $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - $
- $ y1€1 § - $ - $ 901°C 99.8 § £00°0C $
- Y1€1T - - 901°C 99L°8 £00°0T
- $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - $
pIsy SSAUAAIIIRYJY  WN[NOLLIN) punyq e we1304d juean)
198 loyeanpy pue sqor FNIRLIREIN Add sunfiad
LLLY LLLY spiepue)s J01eIMpY 100Y2S
LLLY VIV
(ponunuod)
10T ‘o€ sunyp

P3ILIISIY [00YIS - SPUN,] INUIARY [e1dodg

spun,f [E1UaWUIIA0) 10[BIA[-UON] - 193YS ddue[eq Suruiquio))

STOOHDS OI'TdNd MDIAMY VM LSIM
NOILLVINHMOANI AYVINANATIANS

SHONVIVE ANOA ANV SHLLITIVIT TVLOL
PIIILISIY - SAduE[RY puny

sanIqer| (1oL
sooUEIEq [RUIU]
sosuadxa penuooe pue 9[qesed sjunosoy
sanqery
SHONVIVH ANOA ANV SATLLI'TIIVI'T

SLASSY TVLIOL
SIUOWISACD) 91)S PUR [RIopa] Wwol sn(
SaoUe[Bq [BUISIU]
Used

SLASSY



¢8

(ponunuod)
1.8v § £EP'S $ 656 $ - $ STL'9 $ - $ 169°L6 § SADNVIVE ANNA ANV SALLITIAVIT TVIOL
1.8 €EVS Sv6 - 6v9°c - 291°1 PaLISIY - sddue[ey pung
- - 14! - 990°¢ - 625°96 samIqery fejo,
- - - - 00L°C Sooue[Rq [BUIOIU]
- $ - $ al $ - $ 990‘¢ $ - $ 678°c6 $ sasuadxo porooe pue o[qeded sjuUNooYy
sonIIqery
SHONVIVE ANNA ANV SHLLITIIVIT
1.8F% § £EP'S $ 656 $ - $ SIL9 $ - $ 169°L6 $ SLASSY TVILIOL
- - - - 000°¢ - 67596 STUOUIILIOAOL) 9]B1S PUR [RIOPS,] WIOL an(]
IL8% £EV'S 656 - SILE - 791°1 sedue[eq Jeurau]
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ gse)
SLASSV
sjueIn) sjuear) SONIUBWNE]  JUIUINAISY SSOD AlqUISSY oqgOHAA
dBALL] eiodio) uo Paje1osaN pue sgSH IEAEL 61 vVaiav
[Puno) 1A pLgsiq SINALD)
(ponunuod)
Z10T ‘0g dunyp

PIIOLIISIY [00YIS - SPUNF INUIAIY [e132dg
Spuny [BJUSUUIIA0L) TOfBJAI-UON] - }90YS ddue[eq Sururquio))
STOOHIS OI'TdNd MDIAAVM LSTA
NOILVINHOANI AV INTWATIAAS



(papnjauo0d)

678°99€°T §

706°TEL

SP6°€€9
0Ty 19¢

STSTLT

68°99¢°1

€19°1S9
1¥T8€€
S669LE  $

~ STVIOL

98

8I8°¢ $ 7951 TES99LS
818°¢ TT9°SI Y0V L69
- - 8C1°69
- $ } 871°69 §
818°¢ $ TT9°SI TES99L§
- - 9.8°98
818°¢ TT9°S1 19920€
- $ - S66°9LES
10073591 puny weigory
s1aie|J goun|
SINa [001dS
(ponunuod)

Z10T ‘o€ dunp

PIIOLIISIY [00YIS - SPUN] INUIANY [e13adg

spuny [BJUIUINLIIA0L) I0[RJA[-UON - J39YS ddue[eq SuluIquIo))

STOOHDS OI'TdNd JMDIMYVM LSIM
NOILLVINHOANI AYVINHNATIANS

SHONVIVE ANNA ANV SHILITIGVIT TVLOL
PIIILIISIY - sadUE[RY puny

sanqel (B0,
SQdoUB[Rq [RUIAIU]
sosuadxa paniooe pue o[qeied sjunoI0y
sopIIqery
SHONVIVH ANNA ANV SALLITIIVI'T

SLASSY TVLOL
STUSUIILIOAOL) 0]B)S PUE [2I0P9,] WO on(T
sooue[eq [EWIIU]
yse)

SLASSY



L8

- §  TIOT ‘0€ dunp pajoLiysal - (JdYap) sadue[eq punyy

- [T0T T AInf pajorisal - (Jdap) sadue[eq puny

(panunuod)
- $ - § - $ - $ - $ - $
08t°1L 0S6°881°1 8.9 £60°0C 001°v1 LLO'6T 9SETIOT
- £60°9 - - - -
116411
9L9°01 8576 - S6L°L - 961°L S9L°0€
0781 08L°LT 8.9 090°¢ - 059°¢ 86£°CT
0EY 91 L6LYSE - 9y LSOT (33% 00S‘vEE
¥$S6T 111°9L9 - YLL'9 EPO°El T6L'S £697C9
08v 1L 0S6°881°1 8L9 £60°0C 00T°v1 LLO6T 9GETIOT
08¥°'1L $ 0S6°881°T$ 8.9 $ £60°0C $ 00T%T  § LLO6T 9SETIOT $
I9PLL I9PLL 619 U0 q Hed SIPPOIN 619 UoIIAS q 1ed
yaav [ooyasalg vadal sAnjeIOqR[[0D  [0OTISAI] A4c(¢1
VIiav yaav gunear)

TI0T ‘0€ dunp papuf 1ed X [eISI 9y} 104
PIIILIISIY [00YIS - SpUN,] INUIAIY [erdadg
spuny [BJUIWWIIA0Y) Jo[BA-UON - S9due[eyg punyj ul saguey))
pue saanipuadxy ‘SanudAdy JO JUIUWI)B)S FUIUIqUIO))
STOOHDIS DI'TdNd ADIMUVM LSHM
NOLLYINHOANI AYVINANATINS

sasn upueury 190
pue s2In}puadxa I9A0 $IIINOS FUIDUBUILJ
JI9YJ0 PUB SINUIAIL JO (ASUSIIIJIP) SSAIXH

(sasn) s32.1n0s FuULULY I3Y)0 [BI0],
spuny 10710 (0) siojsuen} Junerodg
(sosn) s32.1n0s FupULRUY JYIQ

S2IN)IPUAdxd (19pUN) J9AO0 SINUIAII SSIIXT

saamyIpuadxa [Bo],

1500 IUI0)
juotndinbs pue A11edoig
s[erajew pue sorjddng
S9OIAISS paseyoIng
sigousg ddKo1dwg
saLIE[Eg

saunjipuadxy

SONUIAAI [B)O ],
BPO
ONUSALI [RIUSTUUIIA0TISNU]
SONUIASY



88

- $  TI0T ‘0€ dung pIjdLsas - (JIOIYIP) sadue[eq puny

- TT10T ‘T AInp poIdLIIsat - (JIDYap) saoue[eq punyg

$asn gupoueury 13Y)0
PUE $3AM1puddx9d 1940 $32.anos gurpueuly
J3)0 PUB SINUIAMI JO (AQUIIIIJIP) SSIXY

(sosn) s3oanos Surouruyy I9Y)0 [0 ],
spury Joyo (03) stoysuen; Suneladp
(sasn) s32anos SupueUly JYIQ

$21N)1puadxa (19pUN) JIA0 SINUIAJL SSIIX

saanjipuadxa [e10],

1500 19430
juowdmbs pue Auadoig
sred)ew pue sorddng
$92[AIOS PISEYDINJ
siyauag oskordury
SoLIE[RY

saanypuadxy

SONUIAJI [€)0 ],
RO
ONUAASI [BIUSUILISA0SIaU]
SONUIAIY

(panunuod)
- § - § - § - $ § - $
$78°01 $09°CT 000°01 SHT96C 081°C 8YV 11T 975 TSE
- 86L°L1 000°0t 081°C - SLEL
LIET - - 009°S - 008°C S68°Y
€6L°¢ - - SHT98¢C - 817°90C ¥S1°8
Sov LOE - 00t - 00¢ 0L0°€T1
00€°S 00Sv - 000°¥ - 000°C T€0°60T
$78°01 $09°7T 000°0% SHT96T 081°C SPr 11T 975°75¢€
S78°01 $ 09T  $ 0000V $ Y7967 $ 081°C $ VY IIC $ 975°7s¢  $
111 dNLL wnaosuo))  wnpIosuo)) wWnipiosuo))  WNILIosuo))  wniliosuo)) T 9L
Surureay, Surureay, Surureay, Surureay, Surureay,
TLTH TLTH cLTH A K4 | KA
YiIv YiIv ViV
(panunuod)

TI0T ‘0€ dung pIpuy I3 X [BISIY A} 104
Pa3OLIISY [00YIS - SPUN ANUIANY [B1adS
Spuny [21UdWIWIIA0F) Jo[eJAl-UON - sadue[eq puny ul saguey))
pue saxnpuadxy ‘sanudAdy Jo JudWIEIS FUruIqUuIo))
STOOHIS DI'TdNd ADIAAVM LSIM
NOILVIAMOANI AYVINANWATdANS



68

(panunjuod)
- $ - $ - $§ - § - § - § - $  TI0T ‘0€ dunf pajdLsal - (JPLIP) sedue[eq puny
- - - - - - - 110T ‘T A[nf PojdLIsaL - QOYap) seoueeq punyg
- - - - - - - $asn uroueuly 1Yo
pue s3ampuadxd 1340 s32.1n0s SupueUly
I9Y3J0 pue sanudAdl Jo (£ousidgap) ssoaxy
- - - - - - - (sasn) §32.unos FudUBULY J9Y)0 [RI0],
- - - - - - - spuny Joyjo (o1) ur sioysuen Sunerd(
(sosn) s32.an0s uueUly 1BYI()
- - - - - - - S2IMIPUIdXd (JOPUN) AIAO SINUIAII SSIIX
78T SY 81 0S SYL1T LLT'LLS 12¥°6€ 191°8¥ £00°0C sarnypuadxa [ejo,
- - - - - - - $1500 19O
- - - - Sle'Le - 7S911 juewrdinbe pue Ayredoig
- - - - 901°C - vL6'S s[ersTeW pue sofjddng
78T Sy - - - - 191°8¥ - §301AeS paseydIng
- 986°¢ 128°1 1ev16T - - Lyl spyousq dokordurg
- 9T9Y vT6'61 918°c8¢ - - 8TTT SOLIE[eS
sa mypuadxy
78TSy 817 0S SYLIT LLT'LLS 127°6€ 191°8¥ €00°0T SINUIAAM [€10 ],
- - - - - - - BYO
8Ty § 8vC'0S  $ SyL1T  $ LLTLLS $ 1cr'ee $ 19187 § €000 $ SMUSASI [RJUSUIUISAOTIIU]
SANUIANY
IPISY SSOUAADIPH  WN[NILLIND) puny jueIn) wersord jueIn)
19§ 10jeanpy pue sqor £amdag AdA sunfIod
LLLY LLLY spiepue)§ l1oyednpy [ooyps
LLLY vaav
(ponunuod)

T10T ‘0€ dung papuy Jedx [BISLY oY) 104

PAILISIY [00YS - SPUN INUIANY [B123dg

spuny [ejUIUILIdA0S) Jo[eA-UON - saoueleq puny ul saguey)
pue saumIpuadxy ‘sonuasdy Jo judue)s Suruiquo))

STOOHOS I2I'Td0d ADIAMIAVA LSHM

NOILVINHOANI AUV INTIANAT1ddAS



06

(panunuod)
1.8V §  gE¥'S §  Sv6 $§ - §  6v9'E $ - $  T9I'T  $ TIOT “0€ dunf pajoLisal - JIoap) sdoue[eq puny
(S9L) EEY'S 681°1 901°¢ v1L'€E (454 - TT0T ‘T A pAjdLIsal - J1o1ap) sadueeq puny
9€9°S - (7v7) (901°¢) ($9) (Tsh) 291°1 sasn gupueuly I9Y}0
pue saunpuadxa 1340 s32an0s gurueuly
J9Y)0 pUE SINUIAAL JO (AJUIINJap) $SAIXY
- - - - - - - (sasn) s92.an0s FudURULY Y0 [0,
- - - - - - - spury 124jo (03) s1oysuen Suneradp
(sasn) saaanos Fuueuly 12Y)Q
9€9°¢ - o) 901°¢) (s9) (Zsh) 791°1 SINIPUIAXI (19PUN) J9A0 SINUIATL SSIIXF]
978°9v - e 901°¢ $90°¢ 661 650°98C saamIpuadxa [ejo,
- - - - - - - 1509 YO
- - - - - - VLY V8T juowdinbe pue Axodorg
197°1 - e - 91¢ 66TY $8S°1 s[errojewr pue sorjddng
- - - - 005°1 - - SAOIAISS paseyaIng
T61°L - - - 68 - - sygousg] eokordury
€LI8E - - 901°¢ 091°1 - - saLIe[es
saumpuadxy
29¥°CS - - - 000°€ LV8'€ 122°L8C SINUIAJT [€10],
91°CS - - - 000°¢ LY8E - RELTY)
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 12T°L8T  $ ONUDALI [RJUIUNLIDAOTIOJU]
SINUIANY
sjueao) sjueao SAIUUBWNY  JUIUIAMITY SSDD AlqQuIdSSy o4DAA
AeALLJ Aerodio) uo parenogoN pue sgsoH [eouan) vy
[Puno) iy pLosia SAALD)
(panunuod)

T10T “0€ dunyp papuy 1ed X [BISI 3y} 104
PIIILIISAY [00YIS - SPUNY INUIAIY [e1dadg
spunj [2)UdWWIIA0X) I0[BJAI-UON - sadue[eq puny ul saguey))

pue saImpuadx T ‘sanuaAdy Jo JudUNB)S SUIUIqUIo))
STOOHDS DI'TdNd JDIAMYVM LSIM
NOILVINHOANI AAVININATIINS



(popnouod)

706°CEL  $

901°56S

_86LLET

86L°LET

LES'EIS’S

£60°9

LTS ETS
8L6°6€1
900°0€L°T
SEL9ET]T
86V°LLTT

SE9°1S6°S
164616

Yr1I9ey's $

S1VIOL

16

8I8°¢ § TTYST $  HOV'L69 §

- 9r€0¢ 1€9°16S

818°¢ (FTLFI) €LL'SYT

818°¢ L'y CLL'SHT

88€Y 675°¢E 179°L90°T

- 078°L -

88¢‘y 60T°€T 091

- 00S°C LLSTSOT

90T'8 S08°8T Y6€€1T1

907’8 S08°8T TL1°6TY

- $ - $ €TTYSL  $

[002SA1 g pung WeI30.0 ]
siafeld young

SINa [00YdS
(ponunuod)

ZI0T ‘0€ dunp papuj Aed X [BISL 3Y) 104
P9IOLIISAY [00YIS - SPUN] INUIAIY [e129dS
Spunj [BJUSWIWIIA0Y) I0[BIA]-UON] - sodue[eg puny ul safuey))

pue sanypuadxy ‘sonu9AdY Jo Jusud}els uruiquio))

STOOHIS DI'Tdd JDIMYVM LSIM
NOILVIARIOANI AUV INAINATddOS

TI0T ‘0€ dunp pajdLIIsal - (JdIJIP) sadue[eq puny
10T “T Anr pa)oLIsas - (WOYap) ssoueqeq punyg
, sasn Sunueury 19Y)o
pue soan)Ipuadxd 1340 §321n0s uULULy
I97)0 pUE SINUIAI JO (APUIYIP) SSIIXH

(sosn) s30.1n0s SurdUBUIJ I3YJ0 [BJO ],
spuny 104jo (03) swysuen Jugerado
(sosn) s92anos Suueuly PYO

$2.IN}Ipuadx? (JOpUN) IIA0 SINUIAIL SSIIXF

saamypuadxs [ejog,

$1S00 JoII()
juowdmbe pue A11adoig
seojews pue sorjddng
SIOTAIOS paseydImJ
sjjoueg ookordwyg
soLIB[RS

saamyipuadxy

SINUIAJL [BIO],

BYO

SNUIASI [RJUSUNLIDAOSIS)U]
$anUIAYY



6

118671 $ £65°¢8 $ 1LS1S $ LY9' Y1 $ - $
691°6¢1 1S6CTL 1LS°1S LYY -
691°6€1 1S6°CTL TLS'1S LY9'p1 -
w01 w901 - - -
w901 w901 $ - $ - $ - $
118°6%1 $ £65°€8 $ 1LS°1S $ LYO'¥1 $ - $
118671 $ £65°¢8 $ 1LSTS $ LY9¥1 $ - $
m—NaOH. m.::rm ﬁ:cm— mﬂoma@»OﬂQm mu::rm ﬂ:om‘ m::—,m ﬂ:cm—
peod poD aa1q avzo avzo
—OO——QM _ccdom . =>>O,H

puny [BJUIMIUIIA0L) I0[BIA[-UON - }99YS ddue[eq Juruiquo))

TI0T ‘o€ dunp

spunyg sydafoagq rende)
ANVIST FAOHYH SIDIAMYVA LSTM A0 NAMOL
NOILLVINHOUNI AUV INHINATIANS

saduE[eq puny pue saNIIqer| [eJ0L
(1o1yap) sadue[eq puny [elo,
Po1oLnSal - s9ouefeq pung

sanIqel| [810L,
9[qeke SUNOIY

sanIqery

SHADNVIVH ANOA ANV SHILI'TIIVI'T

S]asse [e)0],
SeoUR[Rq [EUINIU]
SLASSY



€6

Z10T ‘0€ dunp pajdLISAL - (JIO1Ip) saouefeq puny
10T ‘I AInf pajaLnsas - (JId1ap) sadue[eq puny

saamypuadxa (19pun) a3a0
$32.N0S JI3)0 PUE SINUIAIL JO SSIIXY

(sasn) $324n0s SuULBUL) 1310 [BIO],
spuny 1Lyjo (03) SIoJsuBL],
SpUIY I19YJ0 WOLJ SIQJSULRI],
(sasn) $32.n0s Supueuy YO

$921n08 SuULUI J9Y)0 3.10J3q saxmyipuadxa

(19pun) I9A0 SINUIAIL JO (ADUIDIJIP) SSIIXT

691661 $ 1S6°CL $ 1LS°TS $ LYV $ - $
€70 601 759°0T¢ vIEL9 (z96°91) 6£0°891
(4L8°692) (ToL’Lv1) (ErL'sT) 609°19 (6£0°891)
- - - 8€0°891 (8€0°891)
(8€0°891) - - - (8£0°891)
8€0°891 - - 8€0°891 -
(rL8'697) (ToL°L¥1D) (evL'st) (6T¥°901) (D
vL8°69T TOL'LY1 EPLCI 62901 I
809°861 T0L°LYT EVLST €91°6€ i
99Z°1L - - 997°1L -
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $
m_Nwo,H @::h @:om mﬁo_ww\ro:oﬁ @::.m puog E::.m ﬂ:om
peoy apo)) auyg avzZOo avzZOo
_oo:um _oo:um ESQ,H

TI0T ‘0€ dunp papuy 1es X [BISLY 9Y) 104

Spuny [B)UdUINIIA0N) Jo[eA[-UON - 3due[eg punq ul saguey))
pue saamIpuadxq ‘sanudAdy Jo Juomole)§ Suruiquio))

spuny 323foag rende)

ANVIST AAOHY MDIMUVM LSIM 40 NMOL

NOILVINHOANI AUV INHIWATddAS

saanmyipuadxa [ejo ],
srerrew pue sorddng
somypuedxe [ende)
saamyipuadxyq

SONUOASI [BJO T,
QWOdUT IO
SIUQUISIAU] UO }SAIAU]
SINUIARY



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Non-Major Proprietary Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2012
Municipal
ASSETS Court Totals

Current assets
Accounts receivable

Internal balances $ 80,840 $ 80,840
Total current assets 80,840 80,840

TOTAL ASSETS 80,840 80,840

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 7,131 7,131

Accrued expenses 2,060 2,060
Total current liabilities 9,191 9,191
Total liabilities 9,191 9,191
Net Assets ‘

Unrestricted 71,649 71,649
Total Net Assets $ 71,649 $ 71,649
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Non-Major Proprietary Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Net Assets

~For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Municipal
Court Totals
Operating revenues
Usage sales and fees $ 280,879 $ 280,879
Total operating revenues 280,879 280,879
Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits 118,002 118,002
Materials, supplies, repairs and maintenance 5,503 5,503
Other operating expenses 109,370 109,370
Total operating expenses 232,875 232,875
Operating income (loss) 48,004 48,004
Transfers
Transfers to other funds (10,000) (10,000)
Total transfers (10,000) (10,000)
Net income 38,004 38,004
Net assets - beginning 33,645 33,645
Net assets - ending $ 71,649 $ 71,649
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND

Non-Major Proprietary Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Payment of administrative expense
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Interfund loans
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Operating income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued expenses
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
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Municipal
Court Totals

280,879 $ 280,879
(1,922) (1,922)
(118,002) (118,002)
(109,370) (109,370)
51,585 51,585
(51,585) (51,585)
(51,585) (51,585)

- $ _

48,004 $ 48,004
3,581 3,581
3,581 3,581
51,585 $ 51,585
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012

DRUG EVIDENCE
Assets
Cash
Internal balances
Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits held in custody for others
Total liabilities

SCHOOCL FIDUCIARY FUND
Assets
Cash
Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits held in custody for others
Total liabilities

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets
Cash
Internal balances
Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits held in custody for others
Total liabilities

Balance i Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
$ 88,902 § 24,735 $ 16,261 $ 97,376

6,703 - 6,703 -
$ 95,605 § 24735 $ 22,964 $ 97,376
$ 95,605 § 24,735 $ 22,964 $ 97,376
$ 95,605 $ 24735 $ 22,964 $ 97,376
$ 90,370 $ 258,512 $ 238,967 $ 109,913
$ 90,370 § 258,512 $ 238,967 $ 109,915
$ 90,370 § 258,512 $ 238,967 $ 109,915
$ 90,370 $§ 258,512 $ 238,967 $ 109,915
$ 179,272 $ 283247 $ 255,228 $ 207,291

6,703 - 6,703 -
$ 185,975 $ 283247 $ 261,931 $ 207,291
$ 185,975 $ 283,247 $ 261,931 $ 207,291
$ 185,975 $ 283247 $ 261,931 $ 207,291
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Town of West Warwick, Rhode Island’s Annual Financial Statements
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about
the governments overall financial health.
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



PP &'A Peak Performance in Accounting

Parmelee Poirier & Associates, LLP Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

The Honorable President and
Members of the Town Council

Town of West Warwick

West Warwick, Rhode Island

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of West Warwick (Town), as of
and for the year fiscal ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 23, 2013. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Town’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. ’

469 Centerville Road, Suite 203 | Warwick, RI 02886 | Phone; 401-738-0010 | Fax: 401-738-1105
www.parmeleepoirier.com
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Compliance and Other Matter

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Town in a separate letter dated
February 23, 2013.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Town Council, the School
Committee and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/\Zcuwuiﬁé& Nt & /7&3&g(‘(1/

Parmelee, Poirier & Associates, LLP
February 23, 2013
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PP &A Peak Performance in Accounting

Parmelee Poirier & Associates, LLP Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB
CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable President and
Members of the Town Council

Town of West Warwick

West Warwick, Rhode Island

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of West Warwick (Town), with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Town’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Town’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Town’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program

469 Centerville Road, Suite 203 | Warwick, RI 02886 | Phone: 401-738-0010 | Fax: 401-738-1105
WWW.parmeleepoirier.com
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in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. ‘

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Town Council, the School
Committee, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

)
Ve \
rCM/W/QI’&W /)<C9~Lu_/~—-—’ Cgﬁ S/ s8¢ d’
Parmelee, Poirier & Associates, LLP '
February 23, 2013

105



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal
CFDA Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title Number Grantor's Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through State of Rhode Island Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A $ 642,566
School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 141,657
Food Donation - See Note 4 10.550 N/A 285,025
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 2725-17602-030 48,161
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 3 1,117,409
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Pass-Through State of Rhode Island Division of Planning,
Office of Housing and Community Development
Community Development Block Grant/State Program 14.228 Various $ 493,766
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 3 493,766
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct Program:
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16,738 GR-8255 $ 8,749
Justice Assistance Cluster
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 " DJ-BX-0748 12,135
ARRA-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.803 09-036-JAG-R 44,245
Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 65,129
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Pass-Through State of Rhode Island Department of Transportation,
Governor's Office on Highway Safety
Highway planning and construction 20.205 N/A $ 42,201
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 402-EM-12 27,083
Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ 69,284
Environmental Protection Agency:
Pass-Through State of Rhode Island Environmental Protection Agency
Energy Efficiency And Conservation Block Grant Program 66.040 96101701 $ 226,302
Total Environmental Protection Agency $ 226,302
U.S. Department of Energy:
Direct Program:
ARRA - State Energy Program Special Projects 81.119 EE 2011-04 $ 542,603
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program 81.128 GR-8735 287.222
Total U.S. Department of Energy . $ 829,825
U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through State of Rhode Island Department of Education:
Special Education Cluster:
Title T Grants to Local Education Agencies 84.010 2725-11702-201 3 1,188,950
ARRA-Title T Grants to Local Education Agencies 84.389 4752-10102-101 71,480
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 2725-13202-201 1,026,456
Special Education Preschool Grants 84,173 2725-13502-201 19,077
ARRA-Special Education Grants to States 84.391 4572-10802-101 20,093
ARRA-Special Education Preschool Grants 84.392 4572-10202-101 678
Technology Cluster:
Education Technology State Grants 84.318 2725-12902-260 194,840
ARRA-Education Technology State Grants 84.318 4572-10702-110 296,248
ARRA-Education Technology State Grants 84.386 4572-10702-230 62,605
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 2725-16502-201 10,825
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84,367 2725-16402-201 352,526
ARRA - Race to the Top 84.395 4572-13502-110 117,275
ARRA - Educator Jobs Fund 84.410 4572-13102-101 877,277
Passed through the City of Warwick Public School System
State of Rhode Island
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 2725-16502-101 20,003
Total U.S. Department of Education $ 4,258,333
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Direct Program:
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 EMW-2011-FO-03614 $ 16,200
Pass-through State of Rhode Island Emergency Management Agency:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 N/A 585,727
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 37-71-FY10 HAZ 97.322
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 3 699,249
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 7,759,297
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness (es) identified?

Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

 Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness (es) identified?

Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness (es)?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Child Nutrition Cluster

10.555 National School Lunch Program

14.228 Community Development Block Grant

81.119 ARRA ~ State Energy Projects

84.367 Improving Teacher Quality State Grants
Education Technology Cluster

84.318 Education Technology State Grants

84.386 ARRA - Education Technology State Grants

84.410 ARRA — Educator Jobs Fund

97.036 Disaster Grants — Public Assistance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?
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Ungqualified

X yes
X yes

yes X
X yes

yes X

Ungqualified

yes X

$ 300.000

X yes

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

no

no



TOWN OF WEST WARWICK
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

SECTION II — FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

2012-1 Finding: Rhode Island General Law 16-2-18 prohibits Rhode Island School Departments from having a deficit. The
West Warwick School Department’s Unrestricted Fund had a cumulative fund deficit of $(1,732,352) as of June 30,
2012. This is in violation of Rhode Island General Laws.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Town and School Department implement a plan to fund the cumulative
deficit.

‘Response: Plan was submitted by School Department on September 21, 2012 for a S year payback.

The Town has no authority to alter/ change/ adjust/ or effectively negotiate with the School Department on issues of
this nature, despite the suggestion to the contrary in this audit. State Law as presently formulated establishes schools
virtually as the pre-eminent authority in budgeting as per legislation. Financial discrepancies and serious differences
will likely continue between Schools and Town as per the construction of the legislation.

2012-2 Finding: The Town does not have any purchasing policies or procedures in place. The purchase order process is not
in place or operating effectively. Although the Town has the capability for a Purchase Order system, all Purchase
Orders were issued subsequent to the invoice. Although most Town expenditures were approved subsequent to
services provided or goods received, major project expenses have been approved properly through the bid process. To
be accountable to its citizens and taxpayers, proper approval of expenditures is needed.

Recommendation: We suggest that the Town formalize its purchasing policy, and follow the GL system guidelines
for Purchase Orders.

Response: A Purchasing Ordinance was adopted to comply with State law on March 5, 2013. However, at this time
the Town does not have sufficiently trained/ capable staff in place to competently/ effectively/ consistently administer
purchasing ordinance/ policies procedures. This situation is exacerbated by the inability of the Town to fill senior staff
Finance/ Deputy Finance Director Positions due to the financial distress of the Town. A change in procedure was
established in August 2012 to attempt to ensure that all P.O.’s were appropriately approved prior to purchases made.
While somewhat successful there is still concern that violations occur.

Evidence indicates that Purchasing Policies have been ignored for many years, contributing to the deterioration of the
Town financial condition. (Attached memo to Auditor General Hoyle dated October 18, 2012, as example)

As a side the Library considers itself independent from the Town and has been allowed to pursue its own
administration per a Library Board through agreement searched with the Town in “Spring” of 1994. Additional
comment on the unwieldy nature of this arrangement may be provided through the September 11, 2011 legal opinion
of the Town Solicitor as attached.

2012-3 Finding: The Town does not have any polices or procedures in place to identify Federal Grant expenditures. During
our review of federal grant expenditures, it was noted that there were various reconciliations and journal entries to
transfer and record expenditures in the proper special revenue fund. Not all police overtime expenditures were
recorded in the proper special revenue funds, and as such, the General Fund was overstated for unidentifiable federal
expenditures. We also noted that prior expenditures funded by federal monies were not properly identified, and were
subsequently recorded as general fund expense.
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Recommendation: We suggest that all grants are approved prior to application, and that the Finance Department is
made aware of all grant information, such as the CFDA number, award letters, contract services and agreements in
order to properly account for the grant expenditure in their respective special revenue fund.

Response: This has been inadequately handled for many years and is the result of untrained financial staff and
inappropriate procedures.

A consistent approach may possibly be put in place when a Finance Director is hired.

2012-4 Finding: The Town does not have any polices or procedures in place to identify Federal grant revenues. During our
review of federal grant revenues, it was noted that various revenues were recorded in a ‘suspense” account on the
general fund, until the revenue was identified and transferred to the proper special revenue account/fund. We noted
that revenues for police payroll grants were being posted against police overtime expense, where neither the revenue
nor expense is properly stated. A journal entry was needed to reclassify $176,000 of federal monies received, where
the expenditure recorded in prior years was recorded in the general fund incorrectly.

Recommendation: We suggest that all grants are approved prior to application, and that the Finance Department is
made aware of all grant information, such as the CFDA number, award letters, contract services and agreements in
order to properly account for the grant monies, as well as correspondence for reimbursement requests in order to
properly classify revenue when received.

Response: Same as 2012-3 above

2012-5 Finding: The Town does not have any policies or procedures in place to account for Pension Fund Transactions on
the General Ledger. During our review of the Pension Trust Fund, it was noted that no activity from the Pension
Investment Account is recorded on the Town’s General Ledger. This precludes the Finance Department from
reviewing and approving any transactions that are taken by the Pension Board. Although we don’t believe the Finance
Department needs to approve board transactions, they should at least be recorded on the Town’s ledger and reconciled
at least quarterly to the Pension Investment Statements. It was also noted that certain disbursements paid to the Town
for Pension Clerk activities are in arrears for two quarters.

Recommendation: We suggest that these Clerk activities also be recorded and reconciled at least quarterly.

Response: The operation of the Pension Board is fraught with serious problems which are only partially addressed by
this audit item.

It is absolutely the case that the Finance Department (more correctly, “Town™) should have responsibility for
approving board actions, to differ with the audit viewpoint. There should be no Pension Board “administration” of a
Pension--- the Board could / should play a role in setting Policy, but the “administration” of such a complicated/
complex financially sizable enterprise is not suited to the system now in place. This massive problem cannot be
effectively addressed by having the Finance Department reconcile “at least quarterly”---it will require a much more
“hands on” approach and control and should involve a Charter change to provide more direct administration of the
Pension Fund by the Town. As a further comment, the Pension Board has two signatures to sign checks at a local
bank: this should not be a function of a Pension Board but by the Finance Department of the Town in order to ensure
proper control.

2012-6 Finding: The Town does not have any policies or procedures in place to account for Health [nsurance Expenses in
the Internal Service Fund. During our review of the Internal Service Fund, it was noted that General Fund
contributions to the Internal Service Fund were not being recorded timely. As a result, at June 30, 2012 $4.7M worth
of General Fund contributions were needed to reconcile the Internal Service Fund, as well as to be recorded as
expense on the General Fund. When we reviewed the Health Insurance expenses on the General Fund, the whole year
of contributions were not recorded. Per our audit adjustment, all activity was properly recorded.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
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Recommendation: We suggest that a monthly review of the Internal Service Fund revenues and expenditures, as well

- as recording funding activity from the General Fund take place to ensure that all activity for both Funds are recorded
timely. With this timely posting, budget to actual review for the General Fund is a more useful tool for management as
all expenditures would then be recorded for review. This is the only expense for the General Fund that is not posted on
a periodic bass.

Response: “Timely posting” may be able to be accomplished when a Finance Director is employed. Lack of control
over how health care is negotiated and costed as a benefit and administered by the Town is evidence of the lack of
staff training and capabilities existant n the Town currently.

2012-7 Finding: The Town does not have policies and procedures in place to properly maintain and account for capital
assets. The Town has not performed a physical inventory of capital assets in many years. During our review of Fixed
Assets for both Governmental and Enterprise Funds, it was noted that there are variances in the depreciation and asset
values for both beginning and ending balances. When fixed assets were provided to us, many reconciling items were
needed to tie out the beginning assets and depreciation and ending assets and depreciation. The Town did not identify
any asset additions or retirements throughout the year, and as such, were late in providing any information to the
auditors in regards to these assets. For the Enterprise Funds, asset impairments for the March Flood of 2010 were-only
identified through insurance reimbursements, and were never properly recorded on the Fixed Asset ledger. Only an
‘impairment’ account was created to account for the impairments.

Recommendation: We suggest that the town perform a complete review of all Town assets, including Enterprise
Funds, to determine the status and value of all assets owned by the Town. We additionally suggest that an outside firm
be contracted to do this, as historical information is not readily available from the Town to complete this process.

Response: This is a failing of the Town for many years.

The employment of a Finance Director may allow this issue to be addressed although the capabilities/ competence/
training of staff to address such a issue is problematic at this time- and it has been for many years.

An outside contract can only be viewed as a “band-aid” approach--- if no “historical information” is available to the
Town to complete a process of determining the status and value of all assets owned by the Town, any such effort by
an outside contractor would amount to searching for the same records that the town staff couldn’t find for this audit
and/or creating a new listing at great expense: but this listing would be outdated within days of its completion: as
competent staff with consistent direction is not in place to update and maintain such an audit/ list.

2012-8 Finding: The Town does not have any policies or procedures in place to properly account for General Fund Taxes
receivable and Sewer Fund Usage receivable. During our review of the Trial Balance for the General Fund and
Enterprise Funds, it was noted that there were many entries needed to reconcile Property Taxes receivable and Sewer
use fees receivable to the General Ledger. The FY2013 Tax Levy was mistakenly recorded on the GF Trial Balance,
and a net $2.0M adjustment was needed to correctly record the FY2012 tax levy. FY2013 Sewer billings in the
amount of $5.8M were recorded in FY2012 as revenue and not as deferred. OPAL Sewer Use revenues were
additionally recorded as only Usage, and not identified by other categories such as Assessment, Assessment Interest,
and Industrial.

Recommendation: We suggest that a monthly or quarterly review take place to ensure that all items billed for
Property Taxes and Sewer Use Fees are recorded in the proper period and to the proper categories.

Response: The operation of the Sewer Fund has numerous problems, including maintaining a current listing of assets,
amounts of reserve balance and the understanding and funding of a viable Capital Improvement Program for the
future, for example. These issues, along with those mentioned in the Audit, may possibly be handled by a Finance
Director with competent capable and trained staff.
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SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

2012-9 Finding: The Town does not have any policies or procedures in place to identify Capital Assets purchased with
Federal monies. During our Single audit, it was noted that assets purchased with Federal monies were not properly
identified on a Federal asset schedule, and that a review and reconciliation of Federal assets had not taken place within
the 2-year period required.

Recommendation: We suggest that a Federal asset list be maintained by the Town and School department to account
for any federal asset with a value of greater than $5,000, and bi-annual periodic reviews take place.

Response: A permanent Finance Director will maintain in a separate asset listing of all assets over the amount of
$5,000 purchased with federal grant funds.
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PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None Reported
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TOWN OF WEST WARWICK
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

General - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
programs of the Town of West Warwick, Rhode Island.

Basis of Accounting - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

Determination of Type A, Type B and Major Programs - The determination of Type A and Type B federal
programs was based upon the expenditures for all federal programs for the Town of West Warwick. As such,
the threshold for determining Type A vs. Type B programs is determined at the entity level. For the fiscal year-
ended June 30, 2011, grants with expenditures exceeding $300,000 were determined to be Type A programs
and all other grants were considered Type B programs.

Non-Cash Assistance
U.S.D.A. Contributions: The United States Department of Agriculture makes available commodities for

donations to schools. The amount of $285,025 represents the market value of such commodities used during the
period.

113



